Raksha Health Insurance TP.A Private Limited
Balance sheet as at 31 March 2024
{All amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions. unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes Avat As at
, 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Assets '
Non-current assets
Property. plant and equipment 4 2889 320
Right-of-use assets 3ta) 47.98 8428
Intangible assets 6 .
Financial assels
Investments 7ta) 50.33 5042
Other financial assets 7(b) 7.54 506.98
Income tax assets (net) 8 50.03 . 8745
Deferred tax assets (net) 9 31.97 A
Total non-current assets ) 216,74 768.31
Current assets
Financial assets
Investments 10 @) - 4959
Trade receivables 10 (b} 113.62 143.37
Cash and cash equivalents 10(c) 23.08 50.28
Other bank balances 10 (dy 391.86 0.03
Other financial assets 10 (e) 46.07 15.23
Other eurrent assets 1 80.58 729
Total current assets . 655.21 . 265.79
Total assets o . 871,95 B 1,034.10
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 12 40.00 40.00
Other equity 13 499 45 574.38
Total equity 539,45 614.38
Liabitities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Lease liabilities 5(b) 40.83 5171
Provisions 14 23.92 ) _21.21
Total non-current liabilities 66,75 72,92
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities 15
Lease liabilities 5 (b} 11.01 3222
Trade payables: 15(a)
total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 0.14 1.32
total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro enterprises and 28.89 27.97
small enterprises
Other financial liabilities 15( 10.66 3230
Contract liabilities 16 189.91 220.62
Other current liabilities 16 (a) 7.33 13.96
Provisions 17 : 17.81 18.21
Total current liabitities ) 265.75 346.80°
Total liabilities 332.50 419.72
Total equity and liabilities . ' B71.95 B 1,034,10

The accompanying notes to the financial statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information forms
an integral part of these financial statements,

As per oyr report of even date attached.

For Dhjjwan & Ass For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Charter i Raksha Health Insurance TPA Private Limited
Firm R CIN: UB5199DL2002PTC113925
1 M &L &
Jagdish Db Pawan Kumar Bhalla Himanshu Rastogi Deepa Bansal
Partner Wholetime Director Director Company Secrelary
Membersh DIN: 00312478 DIN: 08700476 M.No. A37579
UDIN :
Place Faridabad Place: Faridabad Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaturu
Date: 13 May 2024 Date: 13 May 2024 Date: 13 May 2024 Date: 13 May 2024



Raksha Health Insurance TPA Private Limited
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts are in Indian Rupecs in millions, unless otherwise stated )

Particulars

Continuing operations
Income

Revenue trom operations
Other income

Total income

Expenses

Employee benefits expense
Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Other expenses

Total expenses

Profit before exceptional item and tax from continuing operations

Exceptional items
Profit before tax for the year from continuing operations

Tax expense:

Current tax

Adjustment of tax relating to earlier years
Deferred tax charge/(credit)

Profit after tax for the year from continuing eperations

Discontinued operations

Protit/ (loss) for the vear from discontinued operations

Tax for the year

Profit/ (loss) after tax for the year from discontinued operations

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss
Re-measurement ot defined benefit plans

Fair value changes in equity instrument through other comprehensive Income
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss
Total other comprehensive (loss) for the year, net of income tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per share for continning operations
(Face value of Rs. 100 per share (31 March 2023: Rs. 100 per share))
Basic and diluted

Earnings per share for discontinued operations [Face value of Rs. 100
per share (March 31, 2023: Rs. 100 per share)}

Basic and diluted

Earnings per share for continuing and discontinued operations [Face
value of Rs. 100 per share (March 31, 2023: Rs. 100 per share)|

Basic and diluted

Notes

18
19

20
21
22
23

L]
ta

26

"For the year ended
31 March 2024

“For the year ended
31 March 2023

519.44 608.31
56.17 37.75
> ) 575.61 616.06
335.37 360.56
6.0 7.56
43.16 54.91
200.49 161.31
585.07- 58433
(9-46) 61.72
$7.58 -
(97.09) 61.72
1.40 18.26
(0.61) 0.46
(24.86) (2,09
(24075 16.62
(72.97) 45.10
(2.28) (6.97)
- 1.76
(2.28) (522)
" (15.25) 39.88
0.64 3.66
10.26) {0.13)
(0.06) {1.10)
031 242
174.931 42.30
ST
(18.24) 11.28
0.5M) (1.30)
(18.81) 9.97

The accompanying notes to the financial statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information forms an integral

part of these financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached.

For Dhawan & Assoefi] For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accound Raksha Health Insurance TPA Private Limited
Firm Regitratioff By CIN: U85199DL2002PTC113925

Jagdish Dhaygp Pawan Kumar Bhalla

Partner

Wholetime Director

Membership Number: (TR# DIN: 00312478
UDIN : 210885‘?( BKB LECE32q

Place: Faridabad Place: Faridabad
Date: 13 May 2024 Date: 13 May 2024
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Himanshu Rastogi
Director
DIN: 08700476

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 13 May 2024
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Deepa Bansal
Compuany Secretary
M.No. A37579

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 13 May 2024



Raksha Health Insurance TPA Private Limited
Statement of cash flows for the nine months ended 31 December 2023
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions. unless otherwise stated)

N " For the ;'ear ended  For the year ended
Particulars

I N N SO - . .31 Mareh 2024 31 March 2023
Cash flows from operating activities o ‘
tLo3s) Profit before tax for the vear from continuing operations (97.04) 61.72
tLoss; before tax for the year from discontinued operations 1228) (322)
Adyusiments:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 7.12 8.45
Amortisation of right-of-use assets 36.04 4o.46
Loss on sale of fixed asset - 137
Interest on fease labilities 534 7.30
Allowance for expected credit Iosses on trade receivables and other receivables 3.87 2,22
Net gain on financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss B (0.98)
Profit on sale of current investment 15.04) -
Finance costs 0.6%9 0.26
Interest income {4).34) (34.62)
Creditors provision no Jonger required written back 10.24) (0.29)
Operating cash flows before working capital changes (91.85) 86.69
Warking capital adjustments;
Trade pavables (30.93) 16.56
Other financial liabilities (21.64) 2.84
Other liabilities (6.63) {32.56)
Provisions 5.560 t5.10
Trade recejvables 25.88 (19.25)
Other financial assets (20.94) 1.29
Other assets _173.29) 1.95
Cash generated from operations (213.84) 5241
Income taxes paid (refunded) . o 36.02 (42.19)
Net cash (used in)/ generated from operating activities (A) — (177.82) 10.22
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, other intangible assets 3.74) 16.23)
including capital advances
Purchase of non-current investments (0.17) (2952
Purchase of current investments 54.63 (22.00)
Investment in fixed deposit 98.85 52.73
[nterest received 39.20 33.09
Net cash generated from/ (used in) investing activities (B) 188.76 28.07
Cash flows from financing activities
Finance costs paid (0.69) (0.26)
Interest paid on lease liabilities 15.36) (7.30)
Repavment of lease liabilities S (32.09) 142.96;
Net cash genernted/ (used in} financing activities (C) ) {38.14) L _{50.53)
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (27.20) (12.24)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the vear 50,28 62.52
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 2308 50.28
Component of cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks (Refer Note 10 (¢))
In current accounts 23.08 50.12
Cash on hand o . . I ) 0.16
Tatal cash and cash equivalents 23.08 80.28

The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Ind A8 7 - "Statement of cash flows” notified under section
133 of Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act) read with Rule 4 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 and the relevant provisions of the
Act.

The accompanying notes to the financial statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information forms an
integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached.

For Dhawa
Chartered Af:
Firm Registig

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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CIN: US53199DL200O2PTCT13925
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N 24092596 BKB LEC 9389

Place: Faridahad Place: Faridabad Place: Bengaturu Place: Bengaluru
Date: 13 May 2024 Datet 13 May 2024 Date: 13 May 2024 Date: 13 May 2024




Raksha Health Insurance TPA Private Limited

Statement of changes in equity for the for the vear ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions except share data and per share data. unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital

~Asat31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2023

Particuls - s - :
ek o Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Balance at the beginning of the vear 4.000.000 40.00 4.000.000 40,00
Balance at the end of the year 4,000,000 40.00 4,000,000 40.00
Refer Note 12.
B. Other equity
! Reserve and Surplus Total
Particulars Notes T Retained Equity General reserve
earnings instruments
Balance as at 1 April 2022 (restated as per Ind AS) 502.27 - 37.81 540.08
Profit after tax for the vear 39.88 - - 39.88
Remeasurements of defined benefit liability/ (asset) 2.74 (0.31) - 242
Total comprehensive income for the year 42.62 {0.31) - 42.30 |
Transaction with owners in their capacity as owners: ‘_4
Transfer to general reserve {0.00) - 0.00 -
Dividend paid o - (8.00) - - | (8.00)
[Balance asat 31 March 2023 i 53689  (031) 318 ] §74.38
Balanceasat 1 Aprit2023 . A, 536.89 o3y 3781 §74.38
Loss after tax for the period (75.25) - - (75.25)
Remeasurements of defined benefit liability/ (asset) i D8 | 0.17) - o 031
Total comprehensive income for the year (74.77) ©0.17) - (74.94)
Transaction with owners in their capacity as owners:
1 x — T
Balance as at 31 March 2024 [ 462.12 {0.48); 37.81 | 499.44

* Refer Note 13.

The accompanying notes to the financial statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information forms an integral part

of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached.
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Raksha Health Tosurance TPA Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
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Company overview

Raksha Health Insurance TPA Private Limited ("the Company”). was wcorporated on 22 Januans 2002 under the provision of Compames Act. 1936 The
Company's registered office 15 Unit nio, DT 425, 4th Floor, Plot No 11 DLF Tower B. Jasola. New Delhi-110020 The business opetatons of the Company
are carried out at various cities in India.

The Company is primardy engaged in providing services as Third Party Administrator (TPA 1 10 health isurance sector, health management services and
allied service pertaining to the healthcare .

Basis of accounting and preparation

Basis of preparation and statement of compliance with Ind AS:

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards {hereinafter refermed o as the “Ind ASs as notified by Ministry of
Corporate Affairs under Section 133 of the Companies Act. 2013 (the Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2013, as
amended and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 were authorized and approved for issue by the Board of Directors on XX May 2024,

For all periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with accounting standards
notified under the section 133 of the Act, read together with paragraph 7 of the Contpanies ( Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021 {Indian GAAP) which is
considered as “Previous GAAP™. The financial statements for the year ended 31 Mareh 2023 are the first Ind AS financial statements of the Company. As
per the principles of Ind AS 104, the transition date to Ind AS is | April 2022, Refer note 40 for understanding the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS
and its effect on the Company’s financial position and financial performance.

These are the first financial statements of the Company prepared in accordance with Ind AS. Accordingly. Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian
Accounting Standards has been applied. Refer note 40 for an explanation of how the transition from Previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the previously
reported financial position, total equity and total comprehensive income of the Company.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements arc presented in Indian rupees. which is alse the functional currency of the Company. All amounts have been rounded-off o the
nearest million, unless otherwise indicated

Basis of measurement

The financial statement have been prepared on a historical cost basis. except for the following:

i_ltem_s i} . __ - o - Measurement basis |
Financial assets and liabilities (including derivatives instruments) _|Fair value

Defined benefit and other long-term em vlovee benefits oblizations ) e Presenit value of defined ,

Use of estimates and judgements

In prt.pal ing these financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management has made estimates. judgements and assumptions. These estimates,

and ptions atfect the application of’ accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities. the disctosures of contingent
liabili!ies at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. Accounting estimates could change from
periad to period. Actual results could differ fiom those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in
circumstances swrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected o the financial statememts in the year in which changes are made and, if
material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Estimates and undetlying assumptions are reviewed on an engoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.
Judgement, estimates and assumptions are required in particular for:
Determination of the estimated aseful lives

Usettl lives of property, plant and equipment are based on the Tile preseribed in Schedule 1T of the Companies Act, 2013, In cases. where the useful lives are
different from that prescribed in Schedule Tl and in case of intangible assets. these are estimated by management taking into account the nature of the asset,
the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset. past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers’
warranties and maintenance support.

Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations

The obligation arising from defined benefit plan is detennined on the basis of actuarial assumptions. Key actuarial assumptions include discount rate. trends
in safary escalation, actuarial rates and life expectancy. The discount rate is determined by reference o market yields at the end of the reporting period on
government bonds. The peried to maturity of the underdying bonds correspond to the probable manurity of the post-cmployment benetit obligations. Due to
camplexities involved in the valuation and its long team nature, defined benefit obligation is sensitive to changes i these assumptions All assumiptions are
reviewed at each reporting period.

Leases




Raksha Health Insuvance TPA Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

The Company evaluates 1f an arangement quahiies to be a lease based on the requirements of the relevant standard. [dentification of a lease requires
significant management judgment. Computation of the lease Habilities and right-of-use assets requires management to estimate the lease term (including
anticipated renewats) and the applicable discount rate. Management estimates the lease term based on past practices and reasonably estimated anticipated
future events. The discount rate i3 generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific 1o the lease being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with
similar characteristic.

(d) Expected credit losses on financial assets

Q]

‘The impairment provisions of financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expecied timing of collection. The Company uses judgment
in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation. based on the Company past history. customer’s creditworthiness.
existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of zach reporting year.

Other estimates:

The preparatien of {1 ial s imvolves esti and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets. liabilities. disclosure of contingent
liabilities at the date of financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses for the reporting period.

Measurement of fair values

The Company’'s accounting pelicies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The management regulardy reviews significant
unchservable inputs and valuation adjustments.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair vafues is included in note 27 - financial instraments




Raksha Health Insurance TP.A Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
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Corrent and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilitics in the balanece sheet based on current  non-current classification

An asset is classitied as current when it satisties any of the following criteria:

-1t is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in. the Company”s normal operating cycle,

~ it is held primarily for the purpose of being iraded;

~ it i3 expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date: or

- it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for af east 12 months after the reporting date.

A liability is classitied as curvent when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

- it is expected to be settled in the Company”s normal operating eycle:

-t is held primarily for the purpose of being traded:

- it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date: or

- the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the Jiability for at least 12 months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that
could, at the option of the counterparty. result in its setthement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classitication

Current assets’ liabilities inelude current portion of non-current financeal assets liabilities respectively.

Al other assets liabilities are classitied as non-current. Deferred tax assets and Habilities (if any) are classitied as non-current assets and liabilities.

Operating cyele
Based ou the nature of the operations and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash or cash equivalents. the
Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of cutrent non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

Significant accounting policies
Financial instruments
Recognition and initial measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instniment of another entity.

Financial instruments also cover contiacts to buy or selt a non-financial item that can be settled net in cash or another financial instrument. or by exchanging
financial instruments. as if the comtracts were financial instruments, with the exception of contracts that were entercd into and continue to be held for the
purpose of the receipt or delivery of'a non-financial item in accordance with the entity’s expected purchase. sale or usage requirements,

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Recognition and initial measurement — financial assets and financial liabilities:

A financial asset (except for trade receivables and contract assets) or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus. for an item not at tair value
through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly aitributable to its acquisition or issue. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognized i diately in the of profit and loss.

Finance income consists of interest income on funds invested and gains on the disposal of FVTPL financial assets. Interest income is recognized as it acorues
in the statement of profit and loss, using the effective interest method.

Finance expeses consist of interest expense on loans and borrowings and financial liabilities. The costs of these are recognized in the statement of profit and
loss using the effective interest method.

Classification and subseguent measurement
Financiol assets

‘The Company classifies financral assets as measured at amortized cost. thir value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCE) or fair value through
profit and loss (“FVTPL™) on the basis of following:

- the entity’s busi model for eing the financial assets: and

~ the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its business model for managing

financial assets.

Awmortized cost:

A finaucial asset is classified and measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:

~ the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows: and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give vise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.




Raksha Health Insurance TPA Private Limited
Notes to the financial statcments for the year ended 31 March 2024

Fair value through other comprehensive income (“"F1OCI™):

A tinancial asset is classitied and measured at FYTOCH if both of the following conditions are met.

- the {inancial asset is held within a business mode] whose objective is achivved by both collecting contractual cash lows and selbmg financial assets and

- the contractual temus of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solelv pavments of principal and bterest on the principal
amount outstanding,

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for rading. the Company may imevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the
investment’s fair velue in OC! (designated as FVOCT - equity invesment), This election is maide on an investment by investment basts.

Fuir value through profit and loss (“FL'TPL")

A financial asset is classifted and nicasured at FVTPL unless it is measured at amortized cost or at FVOCT This includes all derivative financial assets. On
initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at
FVQCT as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or sighificantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise,

Financial assets: Business model assessment
The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at invesment level because this reflects the best
way the business is managed and information is provided to management. The information considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for each of such investments and the operation of those policies in practice.
- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model) and how those risks are managed;

- the frequency. volume and timing of sales of financial asscts in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and expectations about future sales activity.
Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the

Company’s eontinuing recognition of the assets
Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis are measured at FYTPL.




Raksha Health Insurance TPA Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the yvear ended 31 March 2024

a,

(i)

iv)

Financial instruments (continued)

Fi jal assets: A nt whether contractual cash flows are solely pavments of principal and interesr:

For the purposes of this assessment, “prineipal” is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition. ~Interest” is defined as consideration
for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic
tending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs). as well as o profit margin,

In assessing whether the contractual cash tlows are solely payments of principal and interest. the Company considers the contraciual terms of the instrument.
This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such thar it
would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount ar timing of cash flows;

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate. including variable interest rate features:

- prepayenent and extension teatures; and

- terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets te.¢. non recourse featuresi.

A prepavinent feature is consistent with the solely pavinents of principal and interest criterion if the prepayment amount substanfially represents inpaid
amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. which may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of the
contract, Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a significant discount or premium Yo its contractual par amount, a feature that permits or requirés
prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the confractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest {which may also include
reasonable additional compensalion tor early termination) is freated as consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepavment feature is insignificant
at initial recognition.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and fosses

" Trhese assets are subsequently measured at fair vajue, Net gain‘;;n‘dmlbvgémwluding m’{yﬁ‘m
|interest or dividend income, are recognised in statement of profit and loss. =——
These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
The amwortised cost is reduced by impairment losses, Interest income, foreign exchange gains
and losses and impairment are recognised in statement of profit and loss. Any gain or toss on
| . |devecognition is recognised in statemient of profit and loss. ~
‘| Equity investments at FVOCT These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as income in
Statement of Profit and Loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of patt of the cost
of the investment. Other vet vains and losses are recognised in OCH and are not veclassified to
LtatgnLnt of profirand loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at amortised cost

EEESE

Financial linhitities: Classificatie b enent and goins and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measired at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial lability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as beld for trading,
or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial Habilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses,
including any interest expense, are recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Other financial liabilities ave subsequently measured at smortised cost using the effective interest method Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and
losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss. Any gain or Joss on derecognition is also recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

Financial assets

The Campany derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire. or it transters the rights to receive
the contractual cash flows in a fransaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which
the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does no1 refain conirol of the financial asset.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire. The Company also derecomtises a
financial ligbility when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability
based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the cartving amount of the financial liabitity extinguished and the new
financial liability with modified terms is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and tinancial liabilitics are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when. and only when. the Company currently has a
legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to setle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability sinultaneousty.

Foreign currency transactions




Raksha Health Insurance TPA Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

[

Transactions in foreign cumrencies ave translated it the respective functional currency of the Company at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions

Monetary assets and labilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional citency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-
monetaty assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign corrency are translated into the functional currency ar the exchange rate when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange wate al the date
of the transaction. Foreign cunency differences are generally recognised iy the statement of profit and loss.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using indirect method. whereby net profits before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals
or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating. investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Earnings per share

The basic carnings per share "EPS") is computed by dividing the net profit (loss) after tax for the yvears aftributable to equity shareholders by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

The number of shares used in computing diluted earnings per share comprises the weighted average number of shares considered for deriving basic samings
per share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period unless issued at a later date. In computing dilutive earning per share.
only potential equity shares that are dilutive i.2. which reduces camings per share or increases loss per share are included.

Diluted EPS adjust the figures used in the determination of basic EPS to consider:
= The affer-income tax effect of interest and other tfinancing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and
* The weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been vurstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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Revenue recognition
Income from services

Revenue is recognized upon transterring control of promised services to customers in an amount that reflects that consideration we expect  receive in
exchange for those services

The Company derives revenue (rom rendering Third Party Administration (TPA} services is measured either as a percentage of insurance premium or
amount per life family covered and lumpsum amount under the policy depending on the terms of the contract entered into with insurance companies and
government agencies. Such amounts are recognized as revenue on a pro-rata basis during the period of the underlying insurance policy. Performance
obligations while rendering services are satisfied over time,

The Company presents revenues net of indirect taxes i its statement of protit and loss.

Revenue in excess of invoicing are classitied as unbilled receivables where related performance obligation are rendered and right to consideration is
unconditional. Invoicing in excess of revenues are classified as contract liabilities.

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods of services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration for an amount of
consideration is due} from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transters goods or services to the customer. a contract liabiliry
is recognised when the pavment is made or the pavment is due (whichever is arlier). Contract Habilities are recognised as revenue when the Company
performs undet the contract,

Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement:

s. if amy. The cost of an

[tems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment Lo
item of property, plant and equipment comprises:

al its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates.

b) any costs directly atiributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management.

¢} the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located, the obligation for which an entity incurs
either when the item is acquired or as a consequence of having used the item during a particular period for purposes other than to produce inventories during
that peried.

An item of wroperty, plant and equipment is eliminated from the financial statements on disposal or when no further benefit is expected from its use and
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposat of an itew of property. plant and equipnwent is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Subsequent expenditure is capifalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Compauy

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property. plant and equipment outstanding as of cach reporting date are shown as capifal advances.
Amounts paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding as of each reperting date and the cost of property. plant and equipment
not ready for intended use before such date are disclosed under capital work-in-progress.

Depreciation
Depreciation on property. plant and equipment is provided on straight-line method over the useful lives prescribed under Part C of Schedule 11 of the
Companies Act. 2013 in order to reflect actual usage of the assets. The Company estimates the useful lives tor property, plant and equipment as follows:

ICategory ofassets e e s | Useful life (in vears)
{Fumiture and fixtures | 10

Computer equipments 3

Office equipment 3 I 5 |

Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from the date on which assct is ready for use and the depreciation charge for the vear is recagnised in
statement of profit and loss.

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the lease term of three fo six years or the useful lives of the assets. whichever is lower

Intangible assets

(i} Recognition and measurement

Acquired intangible assets

[ntangible asset comprises of software. Intangible assets are recognized only if they are separately identifiable and the Company expects 10 receive future

economic benefits arising out of them. Such assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment fosses.

The intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basts over their expected usetul Hves. The Company had estimated the useful fite of software as 3 vears,
and have been wholly depreciated at vear end 31 March 2023,
Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitabsed onfy when it ineresses the [uture economic benefits embuodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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Aunortisation

Amortisation is calculated based on the cost of the asset, less its residual value

Amortisation i3 recognised in statement of profit and loss on a staight-line basis over the estimated useful fives of intangible assets from the date that they
are available for use. Management believes that perind of amertisation is representative of the period over which the Compaty expeets fo derive cconomic
benefits from the use of the assets.

Amortisation methods and useful lives are reviewed periodically including at each financial vear end. Amormisation on additions and disposals during the
vear is provided on proportionate basis,

Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment loss.

Impairment

[mpairment of financial assets

In respect of trade receivables. the Company applies the simplified approach of Ind AS 109, which requires measurement of loss allowance af an amount
equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a finaneial instrument,

The Company believes that the carrving amount of allowance for expected credit loss with respect fo trade receivables. unbifled receivables and other
tinancial assets is adequate.

The gross carrying antount of a finaneial asset is written oft (either pamiatly or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect. of recovery. This is
generally the case when the Company determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay
the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activitiss in order to comply with
Company’s procedures for the recovery of amount due.

[mpairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses long-lived assets such as property, plant, equipment and acquired intangible assets for impairment whenever events or ehanges in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asser or Company of assets may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists, the Company
estimates the recoverable amount of the asset or group of assets.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit is the higher of its fair value less cost of disposal (FVLCD) and its value-in-use { VIU), The VIU
of long-lived assets is calculated using projected future cash flows. FVLCD of a cash generating unit is computed using tunover and eamings multiples. 1f
the recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to whicl the asset belongs is less than its carving amount. the
carrving amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Impairment loss recognised in respect of CGU is allocated first to reduce the camying amount of goodwill allocated to the CGU (it any), and then to reduce
the carrying amounts of other assets of the CGU on a pro rata basis.

if at the reporting date. there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the
impaiment fosses previousty recognized are reversed such that the asset is recognized at its recoverable amount but not exceeding written down value which
would have been reported if the impairment losses had not been recognized initially. Impairment loss in respect of the goodwit! is not subsequentiy reversed.
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Leases

At ineeption of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is. or-contans, a lease A contract 1. or contains. a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Campany as a lessee

The Company’s lease asset class primarily consist of leases for buifdings. The Company. at the inception of a contract. assesses whether the contract is a
leage or nat Jease. A contract is. or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a time in exchange for a
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identitied asset. the Company assesses whether:

(i) the contract involves the use of an identified asse:
tii) the Company has the right to obtain substantiatly all the econamie benefits from use of the asset throughout the period of use: and
{iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at inception
shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at ot before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received, plus any initial direct costs incutred and an estimate of costs to be incuwired by the lessee in dismantiing and removing the
underlyiug asset ot restoring the underlying asset or site on which it is located. The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accurnulated
depreciation. accumulated impairment losses. if any and adjusted for any femeaswrement of the lease liability. The right-of-use asset is subsequently
depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the end of the lease feym. Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever
there is any indication that their carrving amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss. if any. is recognised in the statement of profit and loss,

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date of the lease, The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. [f that rate cannot be readily determined. the
Company uses incremental borrowing rate. For leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the Company, on a lease by lease basis, may adopt either the
incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or the incremental borrowing rate for the porttolio as a whole. The lease payments shall include fixed
payments, variable lease payments, residual value guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option where the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that
option and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease. The lease liability
is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount o reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to refleat the lease
payments made and remeasuring the carrying amount 1o reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fived lease
payments. The company recognises the of the surement of lease liability due to modification as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset and
statemient of profit and loss depending upon the nature of modification. Where the carrving amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a
further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company recognises any remaining amount of the re-measurenment in statement of profit and
loss.

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for shor-termn leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases
of Tow=valug assets. The Company recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-ling basis over the lease term.

Critical jrudgements in determining the lease tern

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an economie incentive 0 exercise an extgnsion option, or not
exercise a termination option. Extension options (or periods after termination options) are only ineluded in the lease term if' the lease is reasonably certain to
be extended (ot not terminated).

For leases of buildings. the following factors are normally the most relevant:

(a) If there are signifivant penalties to terminate (or not extend), the Company is typically reasonably certain to extend {or not terminate).

b) If any leaschold improvements are expected to have a significant remaining value. the Company is typically reasonably certain to extend (or not
termiinate).

{c} Otherwise, the Company considers other factors in¢uding historical lease dwations and the costs and business discuption required to replace the ivased
asset. Most extension options in building leases have not been included in the lease liability. because the Company could replace the assets without
significant cost or business disruption.

Employee benefits

@) Shott-rerm employee benefits:

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified as short-tenn employee benefits These benefits
include salaries and wages. bonus and ex-gratia. The undiscounted amount of short-term emplovee beoefits expeeted fo be paid in exchange for employee
services is recognized as an expense For the related service rendered by employees.

(i) Post-employment benefits:
Defined contribution plans:

A detined contribution plan is a post-employment benetit plan under which an enuty pays specilied contributions to a separate entity and has no obligation to
pay any further amounts. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards employee provident fund and emplovees state insurance to a
Government administered scheme which is a defined contribution plan. The Company’s contribution 15 recogmzed as an expense in the statement of profit
and loss during the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Defined benefit plans:
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The Compam’s gratuity benefit scheme is a defined bevefit plan The Company™s net obligation in respect of a defined benefit plan is calculated by
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have camed m return for their service in the curvent and prior periods: that benefit is discounted to
determine 1ts present value.

The present value of the oMigation under such benefit plan is determined by independent qualitied actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method which
recognizes each period of service that give rise to additional unit of employee benefit emtitlement and measures cach unit separately to build up the final
abligation.

The obligation is measured at present values of estimated future cash flows. The discounted rates used for determining the present value are based on the
market yields on Government Securities 83 at the balance sheet dates. The Company classities the gratuity as current and non-current based on the actuarial
valuation report.

Actuarial gains or losses are recognised in other comprehensive income. Further. the profit or loss does not include an expected return on plan assets. Instead
net interest recognised in statement of profit and loss is calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benetit obligation to the net
defined benefir liability or asset. The actual return on the plan assets above or below the discount rate is recognised as part of re-measurement of net defined
hability or asset through other comprehensive income.

Re-measurements comprising actuarial gains or fosses and return on plan assers (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability) are not reclassified to statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in the starement
of profit and loss as past service cost.

The Company have considered only such changes in legislation which have been enacled upto the balance sheet date Tor the purpose of delermining defined
henefit obligation.

Compensated absences:

The employees can camy-forward a portion of the unutilised accrucd compensated absences and utilise it in future service periods. The Company records an

obligation for such eornpensated absences in the period in which the employee renders the services that increase this entitlement. The obligation is measured
by independent qualified actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method.
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Taxation

Income tax comprises cutrent and deferred lax Incomg tax expense s recognised in the statement of profit and toss except to the extent it relates to o
business combination. or items directly recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Curvent tax

Curvent tax comprises the expected tax payable ot receivable on the taxable inceme for the year and any adjustment 1o the tax payable oc receivable in respect
of previous vears. The amount of cuurent tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid ot received after considering the uncertamey. if
any, related 10 mcome faxes. [t is measured ustig tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting dates.

Cusrent tax assets and current tax liabilities are offser only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realize
the assets and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously,

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of femporary differences befween the carrying amounts of assets and Habilities for financial reporting purposes and the
carresponding amounts used for taxation purposes, Deferved tax is also recognized in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits, Deferred fax is not
recogmized for:

~ temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of transaction

- temporary differences related to investments in subsidiary and associates. when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and
it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income-taxes reflects the impact of curent year timing differences between taxable income and accounting income for the year and reversal of
timing difterences of eartier years. Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are recognized only fo the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sutficient future faxable income will be available against which
such deferred fax assets can be realized. Deferred tax asset in case of unabsorbed business loss " depreciation is recognized only to the extent that there is
virtual certainty of realization based on convincing evidence, as evaluated on a case to case basis.

Minimum Altemate Tax (MAT) eredit is recognised as an asset to the extent therc is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income fax
during specified period. i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed te be carried forward as per prevailing provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or
tess. which are subject to an insigniticant risk of changes in value,

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash excluding resnicted cash balance and short-term deposits. as
defined above, net of outstanding bank overdratts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

Provisions (other than for employee benefits) and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The expenses relating to a provision is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss net of any reimbursement.
Tf the effect of the time value of money is material. pravisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows specific to the lability The
unwinding of the discount is recognised as tinance cost.

A provision for onerous contracts is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contiact and the expected net cost of
continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established, the Company recognises any impainuent oss on the assets associated with that contract.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may. but will probably not. require an outflow
of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote. no provision
disclosure is made.

A contingent asset is not recognised but disclosed in the Company’s financial statements where an inflow of economic benefit is probable.
Commitments includes the amount of purchase order (net of advance issued to parties for completion of assets. Provisions. contingent assets. contingent
liabilities and commitments are reviewed at each closing date.

Recent pronouncement on Indian Aecounting Standards (Ind AS):-

Ministry of Corporate AfTairs ("MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules as issued from time to time. On 31 March 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 by issung the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Roles. 2023, applicable from 1 April 2023, as helow:
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Tnd AS t — Presentation of Financial Statements

The amendments require compames to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their signiticant accounting policies. Accounting policy
information. fogether with other information. is material when it can reasonably be expected fo influence decisions of primary users of general purpose
financial statements. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant impaet in its financial statements.

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes

The amendments clarity how companies account for deferred tax on fransactions such as leases and decommissioning obligations. The amendments
namrowed the scope of the recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 (recognition exemption) so that it no longer applies to (ransactions
that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. The Company is evaluating the impact. if any. n its fnancial
statements.

Ind AS 8- Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Ervors

The dments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accotnting estimates. The definition of a change in accounting estimates
has been replaced with a definition of accounting estimates. Under the new definition. accounting estimates are “monetary amoimis in financial statements
that are subject to measurement uncerfainty”™. Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require items in financial statements to be
measured in 2 way that involves mcasurement uncertainty. The Company does not expect this amendwent to have any significant imipact in its financial
statements

Ind AS 109 - Financial instruments

The Ministry of Corporate Aftairs ("MCA") vide notification dated 23 March 2022, has issued an amendment to Ind AS 109 which clarifies the fees an entity
should include when it applies the “10%0" test in assessing whether to derecogmise a financial liahility. An entity includes only fees paid or received between
the entity (the borrower) and the lender, including fiees paid or received by either the entity or the lender on the other's behalf. The Company is evaluating the
requirement of the said amendment and its impact on these financial statements.
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4 Property, plant and equipment

Furniture and

Particulars Building Computers Office equipment fixtures Vehicles Total
Gross carryingvalue o

Balance at 1 April 2022 (deemed cost) 16.27 9.28 314 3.10 3.79 33.57
Additions - 4.94 1.37 - - 6.31
Disposals - - - (0.24) (1.63) (.19 - (3.07)
Balance at 31 March 2023 B 16.27 13.97 2.87 1.90 3.79 38.81
Accumulated depreciation

Balance at 1 April 2022 - - - - - -
Charge for the year 0.59 5.90 1.10 0.40 043 842
_P_i_sgosals - - - (L2 (0.41) - tLle2)
Balance at 31 March 2023 0.59 5.90 (0.10) (0.01) 043  6.80
Net earrying value as at 31 March 2023 15.68 .07 2.98 1.91 336 32,01
Gross carrying value

Balance as at 1 April 2023 16.27 13.97 2.87 1.90 3.79 3881
Additions - 7.83 1.69 - - 9.52
Disposals ) - - (098 14l (3.13) (5.52)
Balance at 31 March 2024 16.27 21.80 3.58 0.49 0.66 42.81
Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at 1 Aprif 2023 0.59 5.90 (0.10) (0.01) 043 6.80
Charge for the period 0.59 4.87 1.12 0.32 022 712
Disposals ) - - - = - o
Balance at 31 March 2024 1.18 10.77 1.02 0,31 0.65 13.92
Net carrying value as at 31 March 2024 15.09 11.03 2,56 0.18 0.01 2889

Note:

1 On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment measured
as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment.

Breakup of deemed cost as at 1 April 2022

. A e I
Particulars Building | Computers| Office equipment Furil;:(ttl:::;:nd Vehicles | Total ]
Gross block - - 16.86]  16.60 348 3.53]  4.17] 4464

/| Less; Accumulated depreciation - 0.59 7.33 034 0.43 0.38) 907
Deemed cost 16,27 9,28 3.14 3.10. 379 35.57!

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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6 Intangible assets

Particulars ) ; Software Total
Gross carrying value

Balance at 1 April 2022 (deemed cost) 0.04 0.04
Additions - -
Balance at 31 March 2023 0.04 0.04

Accumulated amortisation
Balance at 1 April 2022 - -

Charge for the year 0.04 0.04
Balance at 31 March 2023 0.04 0.04
Net carrying value as at 31 March 2023 =~ - -

Gross carrying value |

Balance as at 1 April 2023 0.04 0.04
Additions . - -
Balance at 31 March 2024 0.04 0.04

Accumulated amortisation

Balance as at 1 April 2023 0.04 0.04
Charge forthe period - -
Balance at 31 March 2024 0.04 0.04
Net carrying value as at 31 March 2024 - -
Note:

1 On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of intangible assets measured as per the
previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of intangible assets.

Breakup of deemed cost as at | April 2022

Particulars | Software Total |
Gross block o | ,_“0.30“' 0.30
Less: Accumulated amortisation 026 0.26
Deemed cost 0.04]. 0.04

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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5 (a) Right-of-use assets

Particulars Buildings Total
Gross carrying value a -

Balance at 1 April 2022 119.36 11936
Additions ) IR 11.18
Balance at 31 March 2023 130.74 13074

Accumulated amortisation
Balance at | April 2022 - -

Charge for the year . - J6.46 do.46
Balance at 31 March 2023 - 4646 4646
Net carrving value as at 31 March 2023 84.28 8438

Gross carrying value

Balance as at | April 2023 130.74 1378
Additions -

Deletions (4.26) 10.26}
Balance at 31 March 2024 S 13048 130.48

Accumulated amortisation

Balance as at | April 2023 46,46 46,46
Charge for the period 36.04 36.04
Deletions o -

Balance at 31 March 2024 o 82.50 82.50
Net carrving value'as at 31 March 2024 o o 47.98 ) . 47.58

5 (b) Lease labilities

A

C

The following is the movement of lease liabilities

Particulars A at T Asat

L . 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 83.93 1571
Additions - 10.78
Interest expense for the vear 5.36 7.30
Repayment of lease liabilities 13745 ) (49.87)
Balance at the end of the vear _ i S1.84 83.93

The following is the break-up of lease liabilities:

Particulars As at As at Asat
e I 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 VApril2022
Current lease liabilities .01 32.22 3179
Non-current lease liabilities 40.83 51.71 = 8303
L. 5184 8393 11571

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities on an undiscounted basis:

Asat As at  Asat

sarticulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Less than one year 2287 37.57 49.87
One to five years 35.19 38.00 94.82
More than five years - - 0.8t
. 58,06 9563 145.50

Amount recognized in statement of profit and loss

For the year ended For the ya ended

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Tnterest on lease liabilities presented under finance costs % T 7.30
Depreciation on right-of-use assets presented under depreciation and amortisation expenses 36.04 46,46
Expense relating to short-term leases and low value assets presented under other expenses 270 2474
(Renry = TPU—

For the vear ended 31 March 2024, the Company incurred expenses amounnting to Rs. 27 01 million (31 March 2023: Rs 2474 nullions
for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

For the year ended 31 March 2024, the total cash ontflows for leases, including short-term lzases and Jow-value assets amounted to Rs
6446 milhon (31 March 2023 Rs 74.61 million;
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7 Non-curreat financial assets

7 {a) Investments

(a

b

-

-

Particulars

(0 Qnotéd

Equity shares designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income (FYOCIy#

10,484 (March 31. 2023: 9.242) equity shares of Rs. 268.27 cach, fully
patd up af The New India Assurance Company Limited

Investment in bonds designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCH:#

9.70% U.P Power Corporation Limited 2025

8.50% State Bank of India Unsecured. Covertible Bond

7.35%. National Highway Authority Of India 2031

(i) Unquoted

[avestment in debentures at cost:

20,000 (March 31, 2023: 20,0003 Non-convertible debentures of ECL
Finance Limited of Rs. 1000.00 each. pet unit.

Agsregate book valve of quoted investments and market value thereat
Agaregate value of unquoted investments

I O T
31 March 2024

T Asaf

31 March 2023

238 0.90
1017 10,40

817 8.57

942 10.56
20,19 2¢.00
50.33 5042
30.14 3042
20.19 20,00

# The Company designated these investments as equity instruments at FVOCH because the Company intends to hold

these equity securities for the long-term for strategic purposes.

7 (b) Other financial assets

Pacticulars

Asat
31 March 2024

Asat
31 March 2023

Considercd good - Unsecwred
Security deposits
Bank deposits with maturity of more than twelve months

Income tax assets {net)

Particulars

Advance l_a'( net of provision for tax N

Deferred tax assets (net)

Particulars

7.54 1744

e = 489,54

7.54 506.98

Asat Asat

o 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
50.03 8745

30.03 8745
T Asat Asat

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Deferred tax assets

Provision for employee benefits 7.04 832
Allowance for expected credit losses on trade receivables and other receivable 0.97 074
‘Temporary difference arising from fair value adjustment of financial 0.41

assets and liabilities. net ' -
Lease liabilities 13.05 2112
Security deposit 32 0.68
Business Losses N 23

‘Total deferred tax assets 4561 30.87
Deferred tax linhilities

Property. plant and equipment and intangible assets (1.57) 0.76)
Temporary difference arising from fair value adjustment of financial - (1.73)
assets and liabilitics. net

Right-of-use asset 208 (2121
Total deferred tax liabilities (13.64 (23709
Deferred tax assets (net) 31.97 7.17

$TTus spave bay beei itemttonally left blunky
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(Al amouwits are m Inchan Rupees m onlhons, unless ofherwise stated)

1t Current - financial assets

10 (a} Investments

Porticul As at  Asat
St 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Mutual funds at fair value through profit or lass {(quoted)

Investments m muoal funds - 4 50

Total - 49.59

Aggrepate value of quoted i esments - <0 59

10 {b} Trade receivables
Particul Asat Asat
articulars 31March2024 31 March 2023

Total receivables

Considered good - Unsecured 3530 ase

Credit impaned - Unsecwred 387 293
3917 35.84

Less; Allowance for expected cradit losses

Trade receivables - credit impatred o {3.87) (2.95)

Total (A) 3530 32.89

Unbilled receivables”

Considered good - unsecured 7832 11047

Total (B) 78.32 110.47

Total (A+B) , ) 113.62 143.37

The recewvable 1s unbslled” because the Company has not ver issued an wvorce, however, the balance has been meluded under
trade receivables (as oppased to contract assets) becanse 1t 15 an wnconditional right w consideration

Refer Note 31 for ageing details of trade recevables

10 (c) Cash and cash ejquivalents

l;articulars As at
= 31 March.2023
Cash givhand - - - “0le
Balances wath banks i current accounts 23 08 5312
23.08 50.28
10 (d) Other bank balances e
. As at Asat
Particulars , 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
B:;oasmt'h S;@;::ﬁ;wm of more than three months bur fess than fivelve 30180 003
months* _
391.86 0,03
* Deposit of Rs 0 03 million deposited with Consumer Court durmy FY 2022-25
10 (¢) Other financial assets
Particulars Asat Asat
s . 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Considered goad - Unseenred
Security depostts 442 231
Accried interest income on deposits 2397 . 1292
46.07 15.23
11 Other current assets
. Asat Asat
Farticulars - 31 March 2024 31 Mareh 2023
Consrtered },idmwl < Unsecinred :
Balances with government authorities 97 4.20
Advance 1o suppliers 1313 (V)
Advanee o employees 3800 N3}
Other advances 020 038
Prepaid expenses —_— 120 233
80.58 7.29

(Thus spave hus heen intentionally lefi Plank:
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
{ALL amounts arve in Indhan Rupees in nnllons, unless utherwise stated )

12 Equity share capital

N As at - As At “Asac”
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Anthorised:

000,600 gyquity shares of Rs 15 coch s 4040 A0, de0e
40.00 1200 40.00
Fssued and Subscribed and Paideap:
4.000.000 equity shares of Rs 10 each H0.06 H000 . du
B T X T 40.00
a] Reconciliation of the numiber of shares outstanding a( the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:
As at T asa Asat
3t March 2024 3 March 2023 01 Apvil 2022
Particulars —— siiint - o e
Number of Amownt Numbev of shares Antount Number of Amount
P shares shares R
Equity shares
Balance at the beginnmg of the vear 4,000,000 40.00 000,000 4000 4.000.000 4000
Shares issued during the year - - - - - s,
Balance af the end of the reporling periad/ year 4,000,600 40.00 41,000,000 30.00 4,000,000 40.00

b} Rights, preference and resiriclions altached 1o fhe equity shares:
The Company has only one class of shares referred to 53 equity shaves having a par value of Rs. 16 - each, Each holder of equity shares is entithed to one vete per share. Voting rights
camnot be exercised an respect of shares on which any call or other sum presently payabie has not been paid Failure to pay any amouut catled up on shares may lead to forfeiture of
shares.

The dividend proposed by the Board of Diecctors 1s subject to the approval of the shareholders 1n the ensuing Annual General Mecting. except in case of mterim dividend

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the halders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the Company, after distibution of all preferential
amounts. The disinbunon will be in propartion to the number oF equity shares held by the shareholders

¢€) List of shareholders holding more than %% shares of a class of shares

Particutars Ag At T Asat Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 _— oL Aprii2022
Numberal T Halding Number of shares Yo of Holding U0 O e Hotding
i o oo Shares - SR <. s e oo 2DATES T
hare of 10 Each fully paid up
Nikhil Nanda - = 1,209,004 .00 1.200.000 30.00%
Nitasha Nanda - - 1£.200,000 30.000, 1,200,000 30.00%
Dr Nuresh Trehan - - 1.600.006 30007 1.600.000 0 00"
Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited ack Lo e, o - -

d) The company has not bought back any class of shares during the period of five years immedsately preceding the balance sheet Jate

€) The company's objective for the capital I is to ise shareholder value. safegurd bustness continuity and support the growth of the company. The Company determine
) P b P

the caputal requirement based on the annual operating plans, long term and other strategic investment plans. The funding requirement are met through equity. external borrowings and
epening cash flow’s generated

As per the records of the company. including its register of sharehold: bers and other declarari receved from the shareholder regarding benefical mierest, and above
shaeholding represents both fegal anil benetical ownership of shared.

) Promater's shaceholdings

As at 31 March 2024

{Shares held by promorers at the end of the year o - o .
Promoter uame No of shares 3 % of total A‘ Change .
! number of shares | 3uring the perivd
Nikhil Namda . - il . “30.00%
Nitasha Nanda S o o A T R30.00%,
|Dr.Naresh Trehan | - - 40 00%|
Medi Assist [nsurdniee TPA Private Limited i i 3P9aYag | 100.00%, 100 00%0}
As at 31 March 2023
[Shares held by promoters at the end o the vear
Proinotér riame - No of shares %o'of total % Change
number of shares { during the year
|f\’ikhil Nonda 5 i 1,200,000 30.007 ! -
if\'imsha Nanda : 1.200.000 30:00%! ___x
Dr. Xaresh Trehaiy - 1600000 040!

As at 01 Aprit 2022
]Shares Leld bv:promateis at the end of the vear 8 i
Promofer name Noof shares ;  %oftotal ;| % Change

sumber of shares | doring the year

[Nikhil Nanda - L 1200000 30007/ _
Nitasha Nanda 1206000, 3000% B
|Bx Naresk: Trehan | £.600,000. A0 60%) -




Raksha Health lusurance TPA Private Limited
Nofes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024
Al amounts are i [ndian Rupees tn milhous, unless otherw ise stated

13 Other equity

Asat Asat Asat

Particutars 31 March 2024 31 Mareh 2023 1 April 2022

{a) Retained eamings

Batance at the begmmning of the year 53657 702 25

Movement during the period/ year

Total comprahensive income for the period year {7493y 4230 -

Dividend Paid 2o - WA 20000

Balance at the end of the period/ year o164 - o 83687 502.28
{b} General reserve

Balance af the beginnmg of the year 3781 3781 3781

Balance at the end of the period/ year ; 37.81 37.8L 0 3181

Total (a+b) N 49945 §74.38 $40.05

Nature and purpose of other equity

{a} Retained earnings
Retained earnings are the profits that the Compuny has eamed ull date. less any twransfers 1w general reserve. disidends or other dwsiributions paid to shareholders Forther. i also
wncludes the impact of remeasurements of the defined benefis obligations. net of tax.

(b} General reserve
The reserve is created m a Jance with the provi of C ies Act, 2013

ithis space hus been imentianaliy tefi blunky
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
tAll amounts are in Indian Rupees in miflions. unless otherwise stated)

14

15

15 (a)

16 (a)

Provisions (non-current)

Particulars SNiat Asat
| e 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Provision for employee benefits:
Gratuity* 25.92 21.21
2592 20.21
* Refer Note 27
Current financial liabilitics
Trade payables
Asat As at

Particulars

Total out_stunding dues of micro enterprises and

31 Muarch 2024

31 March 2023

smal] enterprises® 0.14 1.52
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro, small and medium enterprises 28.89 27.97
29.03 29.49
Refer Note 32 for ageing details of nade payables. '
*Refer Note 39
15 {b) Other financial liabilities
N As at As at
Particulars B 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Employee benefits payables 10.66 32.30
Other payables - -
10.66 32.30.
Contract linbilities
. Asat As at
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Contract Habilities 189.91 22062
18991 22062
Other currvent liabilities
Particulars As at Asat
Fartienturs - 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Statutory dues 7.33 13.96
733 13.96
Provisions (current)
Particulars As at As at
SRS 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Provision for employee benefits:
Gratuity™* 2.06 6,64
Employee compensated absences - 3.19
2,06 11.83
Provision for Claims Diseliowed:
Ralance at the beginning of the year 6.3% -
Provision created during the Year - -
Reversed Utilisation during the year o 9.37 638
15,75 6.38
{A+B) 17.81 18.21

* Refer Note 27

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
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18

\)

(A)
I

=

(ii)

(B)

Revenue from operations - I — _—

i For the vear ended  For the year ended
il 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Revenne from contracts with customers :

Third Party Administration {TPA) fees 31944 607,13
Health Management Services - L18
Total 519.44 608.31
Disaggregate of revenne information
In the following table. revenues from contracts with customers is disaggregated by major service lines and contract tvpe, The
Company believes that this disaggregation best depicts how the nature. amount. timing and uncertainty of our revenues and
cashflows are effected by industry. market and other economie factors.
Particalars For the year ended  For the year ended
) o i 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Major products/ service lines ' '
Third Party Administration (TPA) fees 519.44 607.13
Health Management Services - 118
519.44 608.31
Revenue by contract type
Services rendered over a point of time 519.44 607.13
Services rendered at a point of time N - 1.18
_ 519.44 . 608.31
Contract counterparties
Others insurers 319,44 608 31
319.44 608.31
Contract balances
The following table provides information about receivables from contract with customers,
Particulars Asat Aual
o N o 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Trade and unbilled receivables 113.62 143 37
Contract liabilities 18991 220.62
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 60 days.
The contract liabilities relate to deferred revenues i.e., to be recognised in the future periods against the services to be provided.
Significant changes in the contract labilities balances during the yearareasfollows:
Particulars Asas As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Movement in contract liabilities:
Opening balance 153.97 191.71
Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liability balance at the
beginning of the year (15397} (181.71)
Increases due to cash received. excluding amounis recognised as revenue
during the vear 189.91 153 97
Closing balanece 189.91 18397

Transaction price allocated to remaining performance obligations
The following table includes revenue expected to be recognised in the future related to performance obligations that are
unsatisfied {or partially satistied) at the reporting date

Particulars As at Asaf
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Within | year 189.91 15397
1-3 years - .
More than 3 years - o -
189.91 153.97
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19 Other income

For the year ended  For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Interest income on:

Bank deposits 29.05 2748
Income tax refund 6.11 212
Investment +.04 3.49
Financial assets at amortised cost 1.14 1.53
Creditors/ provision no longer required written back 024 0.29
Net gain on financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss - 0.98

Protit on sale of current investment 5.04 -

Gain on termination of lease contracts 0.05 -
Miscellaneous income 1050 1.87
56.17 37.75

20 Employee benefits expense

For the year ended  For the vear ended

Particuisrs ) - 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Salaries. bonus and allowances 29688 31895
Contribution to provident and other funds 2010 21.33
Gratuity 5.62 .90
Employee compensated absences 7.99 1.64
Stafl welfare expenses o 4.78 8.73
3335.37 360.56

21 Finance costs

For the year ended  For the year énded

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Interest on lease liabilities 536 7.30

Other interest D69 0.26
6.05 7.56

22 Depreciation and amortisation expenses

For the year ended  For the year ended

Particulars B 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Depreciation on property. plant and equipment (refer note 4) 7.12 8.45

Amortisation of right-of-use assets (refer note 5 (a)) 36.04 —— 46.46
43.16 54.91
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23 Other expenses

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Lab and Di'agnostic expenses
Software subseription charges
Legal and professional expenses
Repair and maintenance-others
Postage and communication
Net loss on financial assers measured at fair value through profit or toss
Advertisement and business promotion

Rent*

Printing and stationerv

Insurance

Travelling and canvevance

Power and fuel

Rates and taxes

Audit fees**

Provision tor doubtful debts (net)

Claim Processing Charges

Expenditure towards CSR activities

Seminar.training and conference expenses

Bank charges

L.oss on sale of fixed asset

Miscellaneous expenses

* Represents lease rentals for short term leases and leases of low-value assets.

** Auditors’ remuneration (excluding Goods and services tax)

28.54 3.04
3.07 3.30
3579 2630
1591 16.75
26 14 2950
-0.18 -
034 1.74
2701 2474
3290 1770
0.61 4
11.92 1515
7.82 891
041 1.2t
2.62 1.60
3.87 22
1.30 2.65
0.73 2.36
.01 0.02
- 1.39
1.18 230
200.49 161.31

Particulars

Statutory audit fees

" For the vear ended

31 March 2024

For the vear ended
31 March 2023

2.62

1.60

2.62

1.60
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24 Summary of discontinued operation
The financial performance and cash flows for discontinued operations

(a) (i) Discontinued operation of investigation income ( LIC)

1 During the Financial year 2023-24. the Company has decided to discontinue the business operations pertaining to pre-policy business which are mainly generating from pre-
policy health check up. The Company has disclosed the discontinuation of pre-policy business as discontinued operations as per the requirement of Ind AS 105 * Non current

asset held for sale and Discontinued operation.

il

Particul Asat As at
LU 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Trade receivables o D o 0.78
Unbilled receivables 3.80 7.59
Trade payables 1.47 0.77
Provision 4.30 303
Particul For ae?ea_f ended For the year ended

artientars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Revenue

Revenue from vperations
Total income

Expenses

Employee benefits expense
Salaries, Bonus and Allowances
Other expenses

Total expenses

Profit/ (Joss) before tax from 2 discontinued operation
Tax credit / (cxpense)

Related to pre-tax profit/(loss)

Profit/ (loss) after tax from a discontinued operation

I

=

Net cash flows attributable to the discontinwed operations

Particulars

19.52 2333

19,52 23.35

721 7.03

. 1459 2327
21.80 L3032

(2.28) (6.97)

- R 1.76

B 1.76

{2.28) (5.22)

For the _vear_endeJ
31 March 2024

Net cash generated (used) in from operating activities ~{A}

Net cash generated {used) in investing activities - (B)

Net cash generated: rused) in financing activities - (C)

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+()

(2.28)

(2.28)

For the year el;l—l—e—d-'

.31 March 2023

(6.97)

16.97)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Profit’ loss) atter tax from a discontinued operation of card business
Prefit- (loss) afler tax from a discontinued operation of pre-policy checkup business

Tax credit fexpense)

(2.28) (6.97)

(2.28) T ey
-z _LLT6,

, (2.28) 15.221
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25 Taxexpense

{a) Amnunts recognised in statement of profit and loss

®

[

=

For the vear ended

For the )'éﬁmmﬁ:e’g -

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current tax 1.40 18.26
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier vears (0.61} 4o
Deferred tax teredit) charge _ {2180) {200
Tax expense for the year (24.07) 16.62
Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income (OCT)
Partiontars ' For the year ended 31 March 2024 -
o B Before tax Tax henefit After tax
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to statement of the profit and loss
Other comprehensive income 037 10.06) 31
0.37 {0.06) .31
e o For fhe vear ended 31 March 2023 ‘*
. - Before tax Tax benefit After tax
[tems that will not be reclassified subsequently to statenient of the profit and loss i
Other comprehensive income (1.10) 242
(L0 EXE

Particulars

Profit (Joss) before tax for the year

Statutory rate

Tax using Company's stalutory rate

Tax effect of:

Tax impact on non~-dedutible expenses

Tax on long-term capital gain

Adjustment of tax relating to earlier years
Other items - due 1o prior year ¢rror

Deferred tax asset on current year taxable loss
Others

(This space has been intemtionaliy left blank}

For the year ended

For the year endéil

e SLMAECR 200 31 March 2033
(99.31) 5475
i 25 17% 25.17%
- (239%) T3.78
242
1 40 .
{0.64) 0.46
.99
123,82} .
20,59 2.38
TR 16,62
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26 Earnings per share ("EPS™)
Basic EPS amounts are cateulated by dividing the profit (loss) for the year attributable to equity halders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share:
tEigures n Rigies mdlions cxeest number of shares)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
_____“ — O 3] March 2024 31 March 2023
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders

Net profit from continuing operations tor the vear attributable to the equity share helders (a) (72.9%) 45.10
Net profit (loss) for the period atiributable fo the equity share holders trom discontinued operation (b) (2.28) (333
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for basic EPS (¢) £000.000 4.000.000
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for diluted EPS (d)* 4006.000 $.000.000
Basic carning per share of Rs. 100 each from continuing operations [a ¢] (18.24H 11.28
Diluted earning jier share of Rs. 100 cach from continuing gperations [a.d) (18.24% 11.28
Basic earning per share of Rs. 100 each (for discontinued operations) [bec] 10.57) {1.30)
Dilured earning iser share of Rs. 100 cach (for discontinued ol erations) [b-d] R 10.57) Ly
Basic eaming per share of Rs.100 cach (for continuing and discontinued operations) [{a+bjc] (1881} 997
Diluted eaming per share of Rs. 100 each {for continuing and discontinued operations) [fa+b) d] (18.81) 9.97

* Computation of weighted average number of equity shares used in calculating basic earning per share is set out below:

= : Sa =
Particulars For the yvear ended or the year ended

— 31 March 2024 w31 ¥arch 2023
Opening balance 4.000.000 1.000,000
Maovement during the year ey e N . O I -
Weishted average number.of eq Lli___r_vshar6§ _____ ) 4,000,000 4,000,000
** Compntation of weighted average number of equity shares used in calculating diluted earning per share is set out below:
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS 4,000,000 1.000,000
Effect of dilutive potential equity shares § - ., -
Weighted average number of éuuiity shares - 4,000,000 4,000,000

*There are no potentially dilutive equity shares.

(This space has been iteitionally Jeft blark)




Raksha Health Insurance TPA Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
CAll amounts are in Indian Rupees in milliens. unless othervise stated)

27 Employee benefits

The Company contributes to the following post-employment plans

a} Defined contribution plans:
The coniributions paid/ payable to Emplovee Provident Fund. Employees State Insurance Scheme. Emplovecs Pension Schentes and other funds. are determined under the relevant
approved schemes and  or statutes and are recognised as expense in the st of profit and loss during the penod in which the employee renders the related service There are no
further obligations other than the contributions payable to the approved trusts/ appropriate authorities.
The Company makes contributions. determined as a specified percentage of employees salaries. in respect of qualifyving employees towards emplovee provident fund and employees
state insurance, which are defined contribution plans. The Company has no obligation other than to make the specified contribution. The contributions are charged to the statement of
profit and loss as they acerue. The amount recognized as an expense towards contribution to provident fund and employee state insurance for the half year ended 31 Narch 2024
aggregated to Rs. 20.10 million (3| March 2023: Rs. 21.33 million and 01 Aprif 2022: Rs. 20.85 million ).

b) Defined benefit plans:

The Company has a defined benefit grawity plan governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, The plan entitles an emplovee who has rendered at least five vears of ¢continuous
service to receive 15 days salary for every completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six months based on the rate of last drawn salary (basic plus deamess allowance) by
the employee concerned. The Company's liability is actuarially determined {using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each vear. Actuarial gains. (losses) are recognised

under other comprehensive income in the statement of profit and loss.

Based on the acruarial \aluation obtained in this respect. the following table sets out the details of the employee benefit obligation and the plan assets as at balance sheet date:

Particulars Asat Asat Asat
- 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2622
Detiaed benetit obligation iR 27.98 27.85 2385
Fair value of plan assets _ - . -
Net defined benefit obligation 27,98 27.85 24.85
Current liabilities 06 6.64 277
Non-current liabilities 2592 212 2208
i Reconciliation of the net defined benefit liability
The following fable shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit Liability and its components.
Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation
Particulars As at Asat As at
= 31 Mareh 2024 31 March 2023 o LApril 202_2
Balance at the beginning of the vear 78S 2485 19.00°
Benefits paid (4.85) 3.24) (2.99)
Past service cost - 332 -
Current service cost 3.53 4.72 398
Interest cost 209 1.86 142
Actuarial {gains)/ Josses recognised in other comprehensive income
Changes in financial assumptions 0.52 (2.03) 344
Experience adjustment — (1.16) (1.63) -
Balance at the end of the vear _ 27.98 27.88 24.85
Exjiense recognised in statement of piofit and Joss - L e e
For the vear ended For the vear ended For the year ended

Pasticulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022

. Current service cost T - 353 4.72 T g
Past service cost - 332 -
Interest cost 2.09 1.86 142
Total 5.62 9.90 5.40

\ A —’ §\
b 9Acc0\3,/
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27 Emplovee benefits (continued)

The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted average)

Expense recognised in other comprehensive income

Particulsrs For the vear ended For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Changes in financial assumptions 0.52 £2.03) 34
Experience adjustment (1.16) (1.63) -
Total . ) - (0.64) @366 344

Actuarial assumptions

particulars As at As at Asat

s . 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Discount rate 7.25% 7.50% 7.50%
Future salary growth 5.00% 5.00%0 5.00%
Retirement age 58 years 38 years 38 vears
Mortality rate 5.00%0 5.00% 5.00%
Withdrawal rate B B TALM 2012-14 IALM 2012-14  1ALM2012-14

Assumptions regarding future mortality have been based on published statistics and mortality tables

iii. Sensitivity analysis

iv.

Reasonably possible changes at the reperting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions. holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation
by the amount shown below:

= O SO — o i 5

As ut As at
Particulars 31 March 2024 o 31 March 2023 N
) - B ~ Incrense Decrease lucrease
Discount rate { 1% niovement) (28,067 33.57 (23.98)
Fuere salary growth {1°o movementy B . 3361 _{27.99) . 30.03 {25.02)
As at
Particulars 01 April 2022
. — e Increase . Degrease
Discount rate (1%0 movement) (22213 2798
Future salary growth (1% movement) o 2803 {22.13)

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation (undiscounted)
Particulars As at Asat As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1Aprit 2022
1* Following vear ) ) 206 6,64 2.77
2™ Following vear 1.58 0.87 0.19
3" Foltowinyg year 0.87 112 0.43
4" Following year 0.96 0.63 0.66
5" Following year 0.77 1.25 0.31
Thereafter ) 21.73 17.28 20.48

v. Description of risk exposures:

Valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time. As such Company is exposed te various risks as follow «

a) Salary increases- Actual salary increases will increase the Plan’s liability. Increase in salary increase rate assumption in future valvations will also increase the lability

bt Investment risk- If plan is funded then assets liabilities mismatch and actual investment return on assets lower than the discount rate assumed at the last valuation date can impact
the liahility.

¢) Discount rate- Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liability,

d) Mortality- Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed wn the valuation can impact the Labilities,

¢) Withdrawals- Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can impact plan’s hability

(c) Other long-term employee benefits:

The Company provides for compensated absences to its cmplovees. The emplovees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilised acerued compensated absences and utilise it in future
service years. During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Company has incurred an expense on compensated absences amounting to Rs. 7,99 million (31 March 2023: Rs. 1.64
mitfion, 01 April 2022: Rs. 2 25 million). The Company determines the expense for compensated absences basis the actuarial vatuation of the present value of the obligation. using
the Projected Hnit Credit Method
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3% Finunelitl insteanents — Baie sihies ad rish nrmagonent

A Fairyalue disclosures

@) Fair vulue hicrarchy
Tl foliow g explams the judgenients and wstomars made iu determnng fhe it valies of e finocis] instuments Al are recogmsed aid sacaswsed s fr salue To prov e an mdicarion abowt the 1ehabibiy of the wgnds wed
wn determnang Gur salue, the Conpag has Slassilicd ns Hmoncial isinmwnls ano the e Revels presenbed under the aveaume
Fuwwcial assers wmd fioanaal habdimes o measursd ar e saloe i the Guancrl statensents and ore grouped imto three kevels of o Bor salue lucrarchh The three lesels
tw the nrasarauent as [ollows
Lesel 3¢ guored prives cusadinstads i active axirkess for financial rsimuments.
Levek 2: inpus ofheer than quoted prices included v ithin Leye] ot are whses
Lev el 3: unobsersablye inputs for the asset or liabili

re defined lisad on te sheenabilin of siprilsam inputs

able for the assel or liability . ciiber directly o ndipecth

Vatwation technigues used to determine foir vatue

The fair value of the finamial assets and Mabiaees are included o1tk amount 1hat would Bie reseivod W sell an

were usad 1o estimate the four values -

= Trade reecivables. cash and cash equivalents. other banh, bidatkes. other financial assers, trxde payables, lease abiliies aid other fimneial liabifitics: Approsinute thetr iy ing amounts Lireely due 10 1he short-erm matitics
of these instnmuils

sot and pand 1o wewnslae a Labiim in an ordarhy teansaction bew 2o market parsespants The follow ing methods

i eyt s ned Jia hich ar¢ medsurahle at smonised cost for nbich fair value are disclosed:
¢ af. 3 \hrch 024

(‘arnin \nhle Fuir value

12022

As at 31 March 2023 -
Fair salue

Carryine 1 atue Fair value

As al
Care g ¥ glue

iFl’;n-ﬂ-:ulzxrs

“Finascidl assets

Imvestments S0 33 % o sl Jd| 464
Trade recevables 11362 143 37 14337
Casliond apsh equivalents ; 230K 02K Sy
Other bank batances 391,86 WL RG
. | st 53 J_,______ L3

———— -
Lease liabilities | st
Trate piyables 28890

\Otber fimrcial Lrabilities
Tnlzl 1 G ial dahilities

i\ L6a __V
PSSR PO = T3 R

T

B Financial risk management

i) _Financial instruments by cateirory

Furticulars -

- As at 31 Murch 2024

Ax it 31 Muarch 2013

| -\nnmuul ms: ]

€ Measurement of fule vyloes

Reconeiliation of Cair value measurement af anr-current investments being clasified 45 FVOCT (Level 3):

Closing: babince 25 om: Maveh 31, 2023

IClmung. bslunce 55 01t Match 31, 2000

Fair value movemen recogmsed in atlt songrehensive inconw =

Fairyalie sy cmen e eounssd uolbir comnrelensive in uwvmc

Particula ment in

i fimancial misely

Opening Iml:m:: as oo April 1, 2032 143
2953

{iii} Risk management

TN -z i Fairvalue® Amartisid 2 - Ealeyalied __A_mmm
Financial axscts 1
fin esumems EUX H 2l iRt 2000 2764 201
Trade recervables . 1362 . 14337 - 4820
“Cosh and cash cquivalews | - - Rt - 6252
Oiher bank balances - RS - a3 .
Cther financral 255 T - 330l | - -
| Total finansial assets 3004 - RELATHE
;L.ense lint s i - . -
‘Trade puy ables i - - ! -
QOther firaneial b, " - 66 LRI 5230 ¢ B 29 41 i
Jotal fipancial Hahilitics, e i LR id Tita] N 158293
(i) Fair valge hicrarchy
As a1 31 Margh 2024 Ft s Asat 31 March. 1033
Particulars Eaie vabue - 3 e
- Level 1 Lavel 2 Level 3 Tutal Lavel 1 Leveld Tial.
Finuncial asscts
Nun-current
Non-corrn i estuens 314 - Al . 34 5 2000 S04
.18 - 20,19, 033 .02 : 20.00 50,42
Coreent
T estments - - - B v 89 . B 1.39
- . 5 « 0,89 - - 4830
_" T T AV S March 2023 -
Pacticalars = Falr valie.
Laeld Lo 2 Lol Tt
Financial asscts
Nan-current
Namurent imestimens - PO3 s 2000
183 . 2000,
Carrent
I estaents . 2061 v . e == ==
2801 o =

The Compamy 's activitias exposs it to markel isk unterest nsks, hauidin nsk and credit nisk. The Company 's board of dirsctors have overall respensibiiny For il esiablishment and ov arsight of the Comipanm 's nsk nnnagement
frameworh This note axplasms the soursey of sish whach the ennty 13 exposed to and how the entiny mamozes the nsh and the selated wipact e te finaeol skwmenis

All findncial assets and financiz] habilities sre recopnised a1 nmorised cost. Hemce, there are oo 1

ibilities clnssified ander Lesel 2

and Level 3

The Compuny hus expusure to the folkon ing risks arising from Gnascial instouments; o T ot

R lkx Arising {rom \hmul cment

Markel rish TLon-terimborrowings and recornised fnatwazl asseis and | Cash flow rm.,m.sun- and sensinity 1

i Taubilities not denomimated 1n Indian Rupec anah sis i

€ redit risk .;['(adu receivaliles. cash mud eash equivalents, miwr bank 'gi:ing anahsis - - i
balances and afber (inamial osscts neasurcd at ummhsn:d

V— S— = L PO —

’L!qmdily nsk 3Borconimgs. irade payables and ather irancial liabities L a(h I‘lu\\ Ior HSN
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Marker rivk
Interest rate risk
The Comparn does mor hune s sinhle ywere

ST 0ate DOTFOB NN GUESTAMRANE a5 at T Macch 26240 38 March 2023 and 61 Apnd 2622 henow, setement af prorit and 1ass 12 10l £a0SUIE 10 IMSESSE RIS yanatien

Forviga eschsroy risk
T Conmpangy does nat lave any ternsuonal ransachons aod tenes. o 15 101 cxposed 10 foragh cxchunge sk 2rsing Fromt SN TR transactons 1 wparts dnd vXpatis

Credit risk

Credn nisk is the nish of firanwaal loss 1 te Compuny 1f'a Sustomt or counterpainty 1o 3 fnancid msirument nfs 1o mwet b comrtual vbliations. and wrises prcipall feom the Congain s iecenables from cuslomers
The cam ing auRunt of foffowinyg ftauial nssels represents the ouninum vedil exposine

A Teade reeeivables tinclading unhilled rece ableay

b Cash and bank batances

< Other financial assers

Trade reecivables

The Company s expostue 1o credi nsh 15 infhwnced nandy by the nkdwadual chaeacienstics of cavh cussomer Credit nsh 15 managed thooush credit approyals a1l h 1 (he cred h of o 0
shich the Comgany grons cradit lenus in the normal conrse of business.

The Corvpany andividually monitors the sanctivned Sredit lnnits as sgainst e owstanding balances Accordwigly, the Company nuskes spacific provisions aganst snch rade reenvables w lerever requued aid monitors the same at
periodic intervals. :

The Congsmny establishizs oo allow ance Sor impainmient e sepseseads its estinaie of expocied losses in respout of ade receivablcs.

Trade inchidnng anbitfed i forns 2 sisficant par of the firancial dsscts carried at msortised sost. The Compam has perfornied domided cuslamer wiss specific assessueim of rezos cribaits of the unbilted
receivables and has Jingl ised (e impai toss. Further, the Contpany 15 closely mononng the @ elopments reross s arons business lines. Basts the afaresatd derailad asssssment mads by Damgensm, prosision

nuads wwards unbilled receivabhes is considered adoquate
Cash and cash cyuivaleats und other bank batances
The cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances are held with bank and (inancial asttnlion saumespartes.

Other financial assets
The Conpans has perfonned the credit vish assessmen for other finaiicial assets and has created aflonance for doubtfl other financiat assets.

Expected eredit losses far cash and cash equivalents and other financial asscts (measured at an amaunt equal 10 12 mnihs expectel credit Jussezd:
As at 31 Mayh 2024

Particulars o . EcIimat@m ’ Expuml eredit I (‘u_nj‘i;-g-umuunl neCof imp-.xirmer
| e s i s e JRor T t ; nivisidn ———x
Coashiond sash eqitivalding 2308 230k
Orher bank balanees 391 8 - | TR S
'_Ollm financial assets 1] - s 3201
As ut 31 Marck 2023 — - = S
Particulars i Estimated gross Experted crodil | Carying amount gl ofimpairement
STV T LA i alabedadll L AT 4 3 vt fadun
Cash and cash equivalents 30.28 ¥ 5028
Otlicr bank balawees | 003 - [
| Ot Gimarncial asets ) i 522314 i L]
._\ a1 Apri) 2022
Ihr ienlars Extimated arnss Expected eredit Carrying amaunt net of impatrment
Cashiamd cash eqnivatens [ ® 6252
Oher bank balan 45157 . 45157
(Other fivacsinf asses 12318 o - 12318

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the sisk that fhe Conmumy will crcouster diffiendty in naceung
managing liquidity is 10 crsure. as Gar as possible. that it will have suifivien liquidity to meet it Habikmes whes they are dus. under both tosmal and stressed
ke company’s repotagion.

he abligations assoviated with s finnreinl liabilitics 1 aee seuked by defivering cash or orother finsmcial asser. The Conypany s approach to
ditions. without incurring ble bosses or rishing danuige

Expasure to Rquidity visk
The Rollow g are the revainmg vonteaciual matuniies of financal bubbliues at 1he eeporting date The amows ars grass and undiscomted:

A Muehon

Pasticulars : i . Conracinal cash Mows
i Luss thae | year 1-3 years Mare than 3 veary Total

Current, son-derivative financial lishilities

Trade payables .03 e . PR

Otlier financial habilities ; {(X0Y - - 1056
'-\_‘7.6" . - 39,69

Asal 31 March 2023 ) R ————

5 Chntractiial cash lows’

Particulars ) — - N T 13 years More than 3 vears___ Total

Current. nvn-derivative financial lighilitics

Trade poyables 29,48 - - 2499

Qiber financial abihoes 3230 - - B30,
81,79 = ~ (1%

Particulars - - i e e i i L PTETACL AL €35 Tl " - ___: ,_‘

S Luss thun 1 year, 1-3 years More than3years Tutal

Curreat, noa-derisative financial lizbilities

Trade pavables (R3] 1312

Othser fimancial habilioes 24 36 0 2 2046
12.68 . > 42.68

Capital management
For the purpose of the Compam s capital samagement. captal includes ssited equity cophtal. share prosmmmand all other squity reseres aitnbotable 16 The eqany hokders of the Conpais The pramany obpzctne of the Conpam s
capital managenwat is to maximise the sharehalder vohs

The Compinn 's policy 15 10 nenntan a1 steong aptal huse sa as 0 noinamm i esior. sredstor and marker sonfrlence and fo sustan fiomre deyslopimens of the busmcss The Congpam's eaputad strweiire mekudes detn The
Company's eapial stmctuse is inflneneed by the clanges in regulacens framework, gosernrm poficies, v atkbie options of finaning and the inpaf of the samc on e liquidiny position

The Compinn's does not ke im outstanding debt a8 31 balance shees dae

Totaf borrow ings inchirhig kease libilies 134 3143 HETE
Total debt S184 RV El [T ]
Tonsl eeponty 23948 nid3N. 3sp e
Adjusted net debt (o adjasted wuity rativ 040 0.14 26

% DHAY
4/¢'
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-
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30 Muoyement in deferred 1ay

s/ {liabilitivs) inen

i Muovement in deferred tax batances for the period ended 31 March 2024

Deferrerl tax Recognived in 1 Recopnized o Duferred tax o Dul’urr‘ed 1ax T‘D_cfcrmd £33 !
iParticulars {iiabilitics)/ assets as !slaltmclll of profit ang 0CE , (Mabiliticsl asscts us aspels i Linbilitiey
at 1 April 2022 ) luss i at 31 March 2023 i
Property plant and cquipricnt and other ntangible assets H {0471 T 0 )_ P (G~7-M T P 7 7t
iRight ol use asset G0.09) K88 - 1202 P 2131 i
HLcase Tabiliues TS & - 2012 iz - l
Employ ee benelis : ! 7 76 ; P47 (0 a2y 832 ®32 - if
Proviston for expected credit loss 018 (R - 074 04 VE
Seeurity deposit l 09T 0285 - Dok U8
- |Investment | 11.3)] x(llS)i (0 18y (.731 CR |
{Tutal ek 209} (L1mf RALR] E

(Totat

| T Betereel thy {
(liahilities)! ussers ag

Particulars
arl

[ Broperty plamt and equipmeit and oiher mangbir
Rt of use aggwt

Lease fiabilities

Emptoy ce benerits

Prov ision for expected credit Joss

Seurify deposit

Tvesimaut

Busincss Losses

Movenent in duferred tax balances for the year eoded 31 March 2023

Rrcignisel in
stalement of profit and

April 2023 Tuss

T WSl

il 2k VL
LI Ry

837 Wy

(BT 023

V.08 1 36)

Iy 7.:)| 186

- 2382
i 7] 2486 |

T Rec rgnived in

L Dieferred tax

Deferved 1ax '

—

Deforred x|

OCH : iabilities)/ assets as ETETY Habilitics
-1 31 March 2024
ST sy S Ak
T (12 0%y E 1208
o 1305 ] 508 -
VRS pAC) 704 -
e wy? ; 097 -
. 032 i 032 - '
.27 ’ o4l 21 -
2382 2383 .
PO A 1Y AT 13641

The Company offscts 1as assets and linbiliues  and only 161 Tas 0 Tegalh enforceable right 1o sot off current tax assets and cemvent tax labilities and the deferred tax assets and delerred tax Iabihies

and relate to incomas taxes levied by the same 1ax authorin .,

(This spuce is intentivandly left blank)




31 Trade Reccivable ageing: Outstanding for following period from the due date of receipts

As at 31-March 2024

Particulars : i Usibilled Not Due “Lessthan 6 6 Months= 1T Year L2 Years | 33 Years  Move than 3 Total
o . i Months . years
Undisputed trade receivable - Considered Good 78.32 - 3348 182 113.62
Undisputed trade receivable - which have significant increase in oredit risk - - 61 32 - - 3.87
Undisputed trade receivable - Credit impaired - - - - - - - -
Disputed trade recotvable - Considered Good - - - - - - - -
Disputed trade receivable - which have significant inercase in credit risk - - - - - - - -
Disputed trade receivable - Creditimpaived. e == - - - - - - - -
Total : R R 7= BW_ Ty E T - - 11749
Less- Loss allowance | = o N L - IR N o 387
e . Sp— o ne
Trade Receivable ageing: Qutstanding for folluwing period from the due date of receipts
Asat 31 March 2023 e — o = — N e e e A ¢ e e e
Purticulars , Unbilled ™ Not Due Lessthan 6 6 Months< [ Year 12 Yemrs 2-3Years Morcthan3  Total
e < = - i . Months years =
Undisputed trade receivable - Considered Good 11447 - 3289 - - - - 143.37
Undisputed trade seceivable - which Tave significant increase in credit risk - - - 1.53 142 - - 295
Undisputed trade veceivable - Credit impaired - - - - - - -
Disputed trade receivable - Considered Good - - - - - - -
Disputed trade receivable - which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - - -
Disputed trade receivable - Creditimpaired . - - - - - - - -
Total : i 11047 - ] 32.89 1,53 142 - R X
Less- allowance for doubtful receivables e i o = | (2.95)
Total . - - o ) - N 14337

Trade Receivable ageing: Outstanding for following period from the duc date of receipts
As at 01 April 2022

Particulars i i Unbilled  Not Due ssthan 6 6 Months-1 Year  1-2 Yean 2-3 Years  More than 3 Total
= _ . ) .. Months N — years
Undisputed trade receivable - Considered Good 122,99 - 23.02 202 - - - 148,03
Undisputed trade receivable - which have significant increase in credit risk - - .90 - - - - .90
Undisputed trade receivable - Credit impaired - - - - - - -
Disputed trade receivable - Considered Good - - - - - - -
Disputed trade receivable - which have significant increase in eredit risk - - - . - . - -
Disputed trade receivable - Cradit-impaired i - - - - - - - -
atal O Ea - S 12299 . B39 3 - - T
“Less- allowsanee tor doubtfiil receivables - y (0.73)

Total i )




32 Trade Payables ageing:

As at 31 March 2024

Particulars Unbilled Not due - Outstanding for following period from due date of Payment Total
Less'thani 1'Year 1-2 year 2-3Year “More than 3
o - Years e
Undisputed dues-MSML . - 014 - B : - .14
Undisputed dues-others Radyil 6.10 0.0% 0.02 - - 28.89
Disputed dues-MSMI: - - - - - - -
Disputed dues-Others - - - o - L= -
Tutal A — nm 624 008 i S - 29.03
‘Trade Payables ageing:
Asat31 March 2023 . B e e
o Unbilled Neot due Outstanding for following period from due date of Payment Total
Particulars Less than 1 Year 1-2 year 2-3Year  More than 3
Undisputed dues-MSME - SRR V57 S AR 157
Undisputed dues-others 15.80 - 12,10 003 - - 27.92
Disputed dues-MSMLZ - - - - - - -
Dhsputed dues-Others = - - - - - -
Tital - B o ss0 13.67 0.03 - - 29.49
‘Trade Payables ageing:
As at 01 April 2022 o =8 e e .
Particulars Unbilled Net due Quistsnding for following freried from die date of Payment Total
Less'than I Year 1-2 year 2-3 Year  More than 3
L Years
Undisputed dues-MSME B = (iR 0107 = . . 010
Undisputed dues-others 331 - 745 036 - - 13.12
Disputed dues-MSME - - - - - - -
Disputed dues-Others - . e L - - - - - -
Total D - . s3f - 7.55 L 036 e 1322

{This space is intentionally left blanky
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Notes to the tinancial statements for the nine months ended 31 March 2024
Al amounts are m Indian Rupees i wullions. untess atherwise stated

33 First time adoption of Tnd AS
As staled m Note 2, these are the Company's first financial statenents prepared in accordance with Ind AS For the vear ended 31 March 2022, the Company had prepared s
finaneral statements in accordance with Companics (Accounting Standards) Rules. 2021, notified under Section [33 of the Act and other relevant provisions of the Act {'Prey ous
GAAPY
The aceountng pohicies set out n Note 3 have been applied 0 prepanng these finaneral statemers for the veae ended 31 March 2023 including the comparztive mformation for the
vear ended 31 March 2022 and the opening Ind AS balance sheet on the date of wansition Le 1 April 2621 (Transition date'}
Ity preparmg its nd AS bakunce sheet as at | Apri 2021, and w presentmg the comparative mformaton for the vear ended 31 March 2022, the Company has adjusted amounts
reported previously m fmancial slatements prepared i accordance with Previous GAAP as Jetaded hereunder and accordmgly the mapact of such wansition on‘the Company's
financial position and financial performance is listed hereunder:
In preparing these financial statements, the Company has apphed the below mentioned optionsl exemptions and mandatory exceptions

A Optional exemptions availed:
Ind A3 101 allows first-tinie adopiers ¢ertain optional exemptions from the retrospective application of certain requirements ynder Ind AS for transition from the previous GAAP
The Company' has avaled the foliowing

il

(i) Deemed cost for property, plant and equip t and other i assets
In secordance with Ind AS 101 the Company bas ¢lected to continue with the canving value of as property, plant and equipment recogaised as at | Aprif 2021 measured as per the
previous GAAP and vse that canving value as the deemed cost of the property. plant and equipment as on the date of transition

B Mandatory exceptians:
In sccordance with Ind AS 101, the Company has applied following mandatory: exceptions for tramsiion from the Previous GAAP

(i) Classification and measurement of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 101, the Company has determined the classification of financial assets based on facts and circumstances that exist on the date of transition Measurement
of finuncial assets aceounted at amortised cost has been done retrospectively except where the same is impracticable.

(ii) Estimates
In accordance with Ind AS 101, the Compan
value as at the date of transiion

s estimates are consistent with those made under Previous GAAP and where necessary, approprate adjustments are made to canying

As per Ind AS 101, the Company is required ro make certain estimates that were not required under Previous GAAP, which should be made to reflect conditions that existed at the
date of transition (for preparing opening Ind AS balance sheet) or at the end of the compuwative period (for presenting comparative information as per Ind AS)

Further estimates considered m preparation of the financial statements that were not required under the Previous GAAP are

1) fair vatuation of financial instraments vamried at Fair Valae dvough Profit and Loss {(FVTPL) and or Farr Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCH)
1) mpannent of financial assets based an the expected credit loss model, and

H1) determmation of the discounted value for finanetal mstruments carried at amortised cost

11his space has been inteunonally feft blonk.)




Raksha Health Inspeance TPA Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the nine months endvd 31 March 2024
v ety are m Incm Rupees i omfions. ardess otliees ise starod)

34

h

First time adoption of Ind AS {continued)

Reconcilingion of balauce sheet ag at 1 April 2021 (date of transition)
Particulars

Assets : -

Non-curcent Assets
Property. plant and equipment
Right-of-use asseis
Intangible assets
Financial assets

Other financial assets
Income tax-assets (nety
Other non-cutrent assets
Total non-current assets

Current assets
Financial assets
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Other financial assets
Other current assets
Total current assets

Total assets

Equity and Liabilities
Equity

Equity share capital
Other equity

Total equity

Liabilities
Nan-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Lease liabilities
Provisions
Total non-current liabilities

Curreat linbilities

Financial liabilities
Borvowings
Lease Fabilities
Trade payables:

total eutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
toral outstanding dues w creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

Other financial liabilities
Other cuarent liabitities
Provisions
Total current labilities

Total liabitities
Total equity and liabilities

*The previous year numbers have been

1

P

sed to meet the p

Note

t>
Pe

s

[N

criteria defined under Division IT of Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013

Amonnt as per Ind AS Amannt as per
Previous GAAP” adiustments IndAS_
0.07 20,50
- 119 56
0351 wn
2740 20 10 107 56
. 63.97 63.97
220 (270 -
39.74 203.14 332.89
1104 4775 59.69
6767 (5.15) 62.52
632 027 1559
3241 (23.18) 923
118.34 480.26 598,50
158.08 - 773.36 931,45
4004 (004) 4000
§ 1).88 518.20 . 540,08
51,92 528.16 580,08
- $3.93 83.93
1140 1062 22.08
1146 94.58 106.01
7.50 (750) -
. nm 3179
100 922
- 2046
72.90 (64,90
SR . ¥ FURNION. X -
94.70 198.23
- 106,16 35278 T
158.08 $20,94 979,01




Raksha Health Insurance TPA Private Limited
Notes to the financinl statements for the nine months ended 31 Muarch 2024
oAl cenomts are m hinduan Regoes ol widess odiersise swited

(i}

Reconciliation of balance sheet as at 31 March 2022

Particilars Note T K ount a8 per Tnd AS Amonnt as per
Previpus GAAP® adjustments Ind AS

Assets

Now-current assets

Property, plant and equipment a49 2251 3zal
2&3 - 8428 B4.28

Intangible assets 004 (.04 -

Financial assets -

Other financial assets 3 48 82 458 16 50598
Incowme rax assets (net) - 37,45 8745
Other non-current assets 3043 (Juds) -
Total non-eurrent assets 94.80. 623,09 717.5%
Current assets
Financial assets

Trade receivables 4712 29,60 7072

Cash and cash equivalents 25 1p 2513 5029

Other financial assets 3 1065 4.58 1523
Other curvent assets R 37.31 o (3003) N 728
Total current assets 120,34 29.31 149,85
Total assets T TTTEE N 65240 867,44
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital (1339 40.00
Other equity Tio 8 e . 34.85 87438
Total equity -B5146 +B14.38
Linbilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial lisbilities

Leage liabilities 2 - SLN
Provisions 4 1247 8.74
Totat non-current lizbilities 12,47 60.4%

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Lease habibities 2 - ER 3222
Trade payables:
total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small eoterprises - -
ol outstanding dues 10 creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises G790 27.18 2797

Qther tinancial liabilities - 3230 3230
Other currens liabilitics 129.84 11588} 13.96
Provisions 4 e.02 9,19 18.21
Total current liabilities 139.65 138,98 278,63
Total liabilities 182,12 199.43 - 351.55

215.04 750.89 963,93

Total equity and liabilities

*The previous year numbers have been regrouped

reclossed Lo meet the presentation witeria detined under Division 11 of Schedule N1 to the Companies Act, 2013



Raksha Health Insurance TPA Private Limited
Nates to the financial stalements (or the nine months ended 31 March 2024
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(i) Reconciliation of tital comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2022

(i)

v

Particulars " Note o A_m(;u;u‘?us_;er_ ndA8T T m;n;o;a;t as‘i;er
Previnus GAAPA adjustments nd AS .
Revenue
Revenue from aperations EHIRE 3217 o3l ed
Other income 3 S LA g Y] 3773
Total income  3nTs 344,66 669,41
Expenses
Employee benefits expense (&4 187,07 17994 JoT.ol
Finance costs 007 744 736
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2 490 4092 3401
Other expenses M 11898 of.61 1843
Total expenses — 3LLES 302.99 614,67
Profit before tax i 13.07 4167 474
Income tax expense :
Corrent tax 208 442 16.50
208 . - 12,33 14.41
Prolin after tax - 10.99 29.34 40.33
Other comprehensive income 5 i ___-_ 2.42"_ = - 242
Total comprehensive income for the year 10.99 31.7¢ 42,77
*The previous year numbers have been rewrouped  rectassed to mee the presentation eriteria defined under Division I of Schedule Ul to the Companies Act, 2013
Reconciliation of total e wity as-ae 31 Mavch 2022 ﬂnd 1 April 2021 -
Particulirs T Asat As at
S B A oo o e PN G R 31 March 2022 1 April 2021
y under Previous GAAP 6202 sioz
Adjustments on nccount of:
Fair valuation of security deposits 3250 0o
Ind AS 116 - "Leases” (123 19) {013y
Total adjustments 190.69) 6.24
Total equity as per Ind AS {27.77) 8,16

n of Jirofit

Reconcili

Particulars

For year ended
31 DMarch 2022

Profit after tax under Previvus GAAP

Adjustments on account of:

Fair valuation of security deposits

Ind AS 116 - “Leases”

Employee benefits

Current tax {Income tax related 10 items thar will nor be reclassitied to stavement of' profit and loss)
Profit after tax as reported under Tnd AS

Other comprehensive income: (loss) (net of tax)

Total comprehensive income as reported under Ind AS

10.9%

3249
(123 05)
179.94)

(14.42)
(271.84)
242

{269.42)




Raksta Health Insuranee TPA Pris ate Limited
Naotes to the fiauncinl sutements for the sine manths ended 31 March 2024
AL amsanntty ave on bndsan Rupees m mflons. sndess itherwne stajed]

3

-

Recunciliation of gash flav s foe the v _ . i e~ v—— —_——

Particalar< Armaunt as per Ind AS Amount as per
Previvus GAAP * ad’ustments LAod A8 -

Netvash fows gonvrared (rom Sperating acti itivs 2 o S 1" 1639

Neot cash flows used m mvesting actitiies (37.07) [CH K 28400

Nt cash (ows used m fnancing activitws B {707 142,86}

Net increase in cash snd cash equivafents 4251 30.44

Cosh and cash wguivalents a1 the beginning of the cear 6307 -

Cash ond cash equivalents a1 the end of the vear P 13.16 3144

*The presious »car nunibers base been régrouped * reckassid 10 mest the prasemation <riteria defined under Division {1 of Schedule 1T ro the Companwes Act, 20

Notes:

Maisnrement of financind assets and fnancial linbilities &t aumrtised vost

Under Prvious GAAP. all financial assets and financial lobilities were camied ar cost.

Under tnd AS. certain fimareial sssets and tingneral liabilities are subsequemly measured at amortised cost which imafos the appheation of efiective wterest muthed. In applyang the effective
nterest method. arentity denlifives. foes dhat are on ustegral part of the effectn « mierest rate of 3 linansial mshument The sffostn e mterest rate 1s the rate that evaglly disconnls cstmalted fawre
cash paymienls or receipts tough the expested Bite of the financial asset or financial liabitity o the gross camying smount of the financial asset or financial liability .
For certain finaacial assets and labitities. the fair valoe of the fnancial assuts Labilitios at the date of iransition to Ind AS has been considersd as the now amortised vost of that finanvial assets
and liabililes at the date of transitean (o Ind AS

Lases

Undur Presious GAAP. lessaw classified a lease a5 an operating or g finance leasi hased an whatlr or not the Jease transforred substantiolly all ish and rewards incidental to the ownership of an
assat Operating fase were sxpensed w (h statemsnt of prolii and doss Pursuant to application of Ind A8 116. for operating leases ofher than these for which the Company bas opted for short-
term or low salue exemption. the Compuny has recorded a right-o-use asset and Iease babulity - Righl-to-use asset is amortised over the least term or usciul i of the Fased assats whiches or is
lower and Jeage lability 15 subsequentlh mensured 2l amortised vost ad interesl expense is recognised.

Seeurity depeosits

Lndee previous GAAP. security deposis swere recordud a1 theiy ransaction value. Under Ind AS 32 and Ind AS iy security deposit being a financial asset is rocognised ai tiseir fair value.
Aczordmgly, the Company bos discounted these depasits For the respeative lease period and difference betweon the disceunted valua (faw valuvt and the (ransaetion value of sccuny deposit has
bieen recoguised ay prepaid rent Under Ind AS 116, sueh prepaid lease vent 15 considered as o part o Rught of use asset. Thesefore. the prepard lease rent as af transaction date has bewni
transfereed to Ripht of wse agset and amortised over the (ease lers The interest mcome 15 recorded on the fair value of the sevutity deposit at the mterest rate which was used for discounting of
the seewriny deposit.

Emplayee henefits

Lnder previons GAAP, actuanal gaing and losses werc recognised m the statement of protit and loss Under lnd AS. the acruarral gams and lasses form part of remeosurement of the net defined
benetiy habality: assel which 15 d m other pret s meome Comns: I, the fas effoet of the same has alse been recogmsed 1n other comprehensiye mcome under Ind AS mstead
of dw statamunt of profit aud loss.

Other comprebensive income
Under lnd AS. remcasuramncans (comprisuns of avluaniol gains and lusses. relwn on plon assets eveluding ameunts ischaded in net defined benufit Habilay assetr are recognised in GCEL Uader
Indian GAAP. the eiire ost, including sciuanal gains and losses are charged (o profit ond loss. The actuarial foss as at the transition date has buen rectussified from stawment of prafit and koss

0 0T




Raksha Health Insurance TPA Private Limited
Notes to the financial statemnents for the year ended 31 March 2024
(ANl amounts are wm Indian Bupees in millions, inless otherwise sialed)

35 Ratios

[sr. TRatio Numerator / denominator 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023 *% Change from 31 March 2023 | Reason for change by more than 25%
[No. " _ to 31 March 2024 |
[ 1 Current ratio [ < Current assets w 65521 | moml..i.. i IThe variation is owing to sigmificant
H [ o F Fm e T R 247 e 0.77 2 decrease in current assets viz g vz
“ _ Current ligbilities 265.75 w.ac.xc_ narginal decrease in current liabilities.
2 WCGE Service coverage Ratio arnings available for debt m&.inai T (29.81 w_‘ - 100,01 | [ The variation is due to losses incurt :._ n
3 - = ‘ = | ] . " .‘ H H
{ = i = 1 L o et | 3.10 <129 1294/ the cwrent year. owing to reduction in
! Debt Service ‘ 33.06"| 3230 operations,
I = e T = T e 5 - — ' —— ST i T - = |
_ 3 _meE on Equity ("ROL * | Net profits after taxes - Preference dividend (72.97)] | 45'10| | The variation is due to losses incurred m
| ; = . . — S | [{UR [k 7 IN——— 0.08 -267.49%|the current year. owing to reduction in
m. i Average sharcholder's equity 576.92| | 397.23 operations,
it = - - - - . iy, - 4
4 sTrade receivables wrnover ratio Net Credit Sales : | Eo.w&__ 104 ocm.m 1 590 _37.53%
Average Accounts Receivable | 2esel L 10153 | o o
5 "{Trade pavables turnover ratio Net Credit Purchases ‘ 20049 161.31 The variation is primarily on account iw
i = | 6.83 -9 290 gfdecrease in credit peried from RU davs tof
| Average Accounts Payable 2926 2130 | 60 days during, the year, m
6 'Net capl I turnover ratio | [Net Sales 519.44| "5 60831 ] . e The varialion is owing to decrease (i
ind - = t 133 7.51 -117.76% =
I | [Working Capital . 38940/ g _ (81.00) ! ,._ e ]:. operations L
7 iNet profit ratio Net Profit after tax | (72.97) 45,10 | he variation 1s owing 1o significant losses!
Adede oA e e SN Lt 34 014 ol .07 289 47% &
L | [NetSales - . 51943 O s 3 | denider LRI PR |
| ® !Return on capital employed (ROCE) | _ [Earning before interest and taxes 1 (9463 0.2 61.72 0.10 I 746% The vanation 1s owing to decrease in bank;
T Capital Emposed o 53945 1 61438 - . ) deposits during the vear 1
Y 'Return on investment = |Income eentrated from invested funds ! 29.05 [ 2748 | ‘The variation is owing 10 decrease in :a:r.m
Average invested funds in treasury investments | 391.86 0.07 48457 0.06, 32,10 deposits during the vear




Raksha Health Insurance TPA Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Allamounts are in [ndian Rupees in millions. unless otherwise stated)

36 Corporate Social Respensibility (('SR)
Where the company covered under section 135 of the 2013 Act. the following shall be disclosed with regard to CSR activities:-

[Particulars - | For the vearended | Forthe year ended
31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023 !«

|ta) amount required to be spent by the company during the )'ear_ o ' 1.80‘_ 249
|{b) amount of expenditure incurred 1.80, 2.63
- —_— ) ——————— R a— N e e S {
;( ¢ shortfall at the end of the vear < 0 16)
(d) total of previous years shorttall a = -
{¢) reason for shortfail - K

{f) tiature of CSR achvities The area for CSR{The area for CSR°
activities is livelihoed activitics is  livelihood

jenhancement and enhancement and|.

employment  enhancing emplovment  enhancing
[yocational skills by wa_\'lw)cational skills by way]
tof providing training in a|of providing training in al
a\‘.‘idc array of functiona[iwide array of functional
areas to  persons - atlareas  to  persons at
various locations of 1he§vurious locations of the
|Company across fndia.  }Company across India. |

37  Segment reporting
The Company's business activity falls within a single primary business segment of TPA service provider and one reportable geographical segment which is “within
India”. Accordingly, the Company is a single segment company in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard 108 “QOperating Segment”.

38  Related party disclosures
(A)  Names of the related parties and description of relationship

(i) Holding Company Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited (with effect from (w.c.f) 3]
August 2023}

(ii} Ultimate Holding Company Medi Assist Healthcare Services Limited (w.e.f 31 August 2023)

(iii) Entity under significant influence: Raksha Universal Private Limited

Ritu Nanda Insurance Services Private Limited
Sun & Moon Travels India Private Limited
Sharak Healthcare Private Limited

Jasmine Realty Ventures Private Limited
Escorts Kubota Limited

(iii) Key Management Personnel Nitasha Nanda (KMP}
Pawan Kumar Bhalla {(KMP)
Nikhil Nanda (Relative of KMP)
Shiv Bhalla (Relative of KMP)

(B)  Summary of transactions with the above related parties are as follows :

A For the vear ended For the vear ended For the vear ended
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Services Received / Goods Purchased
Raksha Universal Private Limited 235 1.04 -
Sun & Moon Travels India Private Limited 0.50 0.95 -
Jasmine Realty Ventures Private Lintited 4.46 4.25 -
Nikhil Nanda 7.74 10.02 .
Nitasha Nanda 10.05 11.86 -
Shiv Bhalla 232 2.48 -
Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited 3.34 - -
Renumeration
Pawan Kumar Bhalla 138 83 3500

Issue of share capital
Medi Assist Insutance TPA Private Lintited 40 00 -




Ralksha Health Insurance TPA Private Limited
Nates to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Al amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions. unless otherwise stated)

38

)

39

40

41

Related party disclesures (continued)

The Comyiany has the following amount due from/ to related parties

Particulars

As at
31 March 2024

PayablcﬁReceivables) from/ to related party
Escorts Kubota Limited

Raksha Universal Private Limited

Shiv Bhalla

Jasmine Realty Ventures Private Limited

Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited

Security Deposit paid

Nikhil Nanda

Nitasha Nanda

Shiv Bhalla

Jasmine Realty Ventures Private Limited

Micro, small and medium enterprise

0.04

As at
31 March 2023

0.10
(0.01)

1.88
2.27
0.23
0.86

As at
e April 2022

0.29
0.02
0.11
0.04

1.88
227
0.23
0.86

The disclosure in respeet of the amounts payable to Micro and Small Enterprises as at 31 March 2024, 31 March 2023 and 01 April 2022 has been made in the financial
statements based on information received and available with the Company. The Company does not have any dues to micro and small enterprises as at 31 March 2024,

31 March 2023 and Q1 April 2022

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting vear

Particulars As at As at As at

R ) B 11 (< | 21723 31 March 2023 1 Agril 2022
The principal amount and the mterest due thereon remaining unpaid to anv supplier at
the end of each accounting vear:
Principal Q.14 152 0.10
Interest - - -
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro. Small and - - -
Medium Laterprises Development Act. 2006, along with the amount of the payment
made to the supplier bevond the appoeinted day during each accounting vear.
The amount of interest due and pavable for the peried of delay in making pavment - - -
(which have been paid but bevond the appointed day during the year) but without
adding the interest specified under the Micro. Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006.
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting - -
year.
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years,
until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise.
for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the " - -
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.
Contingent liabilities and commitments

As at As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2024

3 Macch2023

-Bank Gurantees Executed
In favor of Insurer for performance of settlement of claims*

-Income Tax Department (AY 2020-21)
~Income Tax Department (AY 2017-18)

1Aprit2022

The Company does rot have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts tor which there are any material foresecable losses.

97.50 97 30 8250
- - 10 60
. - 347
9750 97.50 98.57
P
S ASSOC.;\\

O -
\?7\\_ - &Ys
\e—S

Fep accS
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
tAll amounts are in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

42
{i)

(i)

(iif}

(iv)

)

(vi)

' (vii)
(I

(I

(ix)

x)

i)

(xii)

(xiii)

Additional regulatory infarmation required under Schedule 111

Details of benami property held
No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company tor holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act. 1988 (45 of
1988) and Rules made thereunder.

Borrowing secured against current assets
The Company has no borrowings (tom linancial institutions on the basis of security of current assets.

Wilful defaulter
The Company has not been declared as a “Wiltul Defaulter by any bank or financial institution (as defined under the Companies Act, 20135 or consortium thereof, in
accordance with the guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India.

Relationship with struck off companies
The Company has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956

Compliance with number of lavers of companies
The Company has complied with the number of lavers prescribed under clause (87} of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Lavers)
Rules. 2017,

Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements
The Company has not entered into any approved scheme of arrangement wihich has an accounting impact in current or previous financial vear,

Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies). including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that
the Intermediary shall:

{a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identitied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

The Company has not received any fund from any person or any entity, including foreign entities {Funding Party)y with the understanding (whether recorded in writing
or otherwise) that the Company shall:

{a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by a or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneliciaries);
or

(b} pravide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

drrectly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in amy manner whatsoever by or on behaif of the Funding Party (1)ltimate Bencficiaries) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

Undisclosed income
There is no incame surrendered ar disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961. that has not been
recorded in the books of account.

Details of erypto currency or virtual currency
The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the eurrent or previous year.

Valuation of property, plant and equipment, intangible asset and investment property

The Company has not revalued its property. plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or mtangible assets or both during the current or previous vear. The
Company does not have investment property’,

‘The Company does not hase any charges or satistaction which is vet 1o be registered with Registrar of Companies bevond the statutory period.
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44

Events after the reporting date

The Company evaluated all events or transactions that occurred after the balance sheet date through. the date at which the financial statements were available to be
issued and determined that there are no other items to disclose except those already disclosed in the financial in earlier notes.

The Code on Social Security 2020

The Code on Social Security 2020 (“the Code’) relating to emplovee benefits. during the employment and post-employment. has received Presidential assent on
September 28, 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. Further. the M inistry of Labour and Employment has released draft rules for the Code on
November 13, 2020. However. the effective date from which the changes are applicable s yet to be notified and rules for quantifying the financial impact are also not
yet issued.

The accompanying notes to the financial statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information formis an integral part of
these financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached.
For Dbawan & AssgeilE For and on bekalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accoupfants* “‘)SOC/,q Raksha Health Insurance TPA Private Limited
Firm Reglstrati CIN: U83199DL2002PTC113925

= T Qo Qe

Jagdish B Pawan Kumar Bhalla Himanshu Rastogi Deepa Bansal
Partner Wholetime Director Director Company Secretary
Membership Number; 0883 DIN: 00312478 DIN: 08700476 M.No. A37579
lJDlN:ZzOQXSQK KBLEC 8289

Place: Faridabad Place: Faridabad Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date: 13 May 2024 Date: 13 May 2024 Date; {3 May 2024 Date: 13 May 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To

The Members of Raksha Health Insurance TPA Private Limited
Report on the audit of the financial statements.

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Raksha Health Insurance
TPA Private Limited (formerly known as Raksha TPA Private Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the
Statement of Profit and Loss and statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section
133 of the Act, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, its profit and cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing specified
under section 143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the code of ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the code of ethics. we believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter
1. Sundry Debtors/Sundry Creditors/Claims Recoverable/Claims Payable are

subject to reconciliation/confirmation, and the adjustments if any, shall be
made after completion of such reconciliation/confirmation.

our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.
Management’s responsibility for the financial statements.

Phone: 9811061731, Email: fca.jdhawan@gmail.com



The Company’s board of directors are responsible for the matters stated in section
134 (5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those board of directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
‘error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of interne}% control.

—~ . R . ~
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section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has an adequate internal
financial control system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
Janned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have h
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

/i
i | 1 ’.. /




Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As per the information and explanations given to us together with our
examination of books of account, we report that the Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), as issued by the Central
Government of-India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Act, is applicable then we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the

matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)

b)

g)

h)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which
to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes
of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been
kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those
books. ) '

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, and the cash flow
statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind As
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors
as on March 31, 2024 taken on record by the board of directors, none of
the directors are disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed
as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B”. Our report
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report
in accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as
amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the
Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report
in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit apd Auditors) Rules, -,
2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our inforfuation and




ii.

iil.

iv.

vi.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation as at
31st March 2024on the financial position in tis financial
statements- Refer to “Point IV of Schedule 12 of Notes to
Accounts”.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including
derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable
losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to
the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(a) The management has represented that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
persons or entities, including with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
directly or indirectly lendor invest in other personsor
entitiesdentified inany manner whatsoever(“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) byor on behalf of the Companyor provide any
guarantee,security  or the like to oron behalf of the
UltimateBeneficiaries.

(b) The management hasrepresented, that, to the bestof its
knowledge and belief, nofunds have been received by theCompany
from any persons orentities, including foreign entities(“Funding
Parties”), with theunderstanding, whether recordedin writing or
otherwise, that theCompany shall, directly or indirectly, lendor
invest in other personsor entities identified inany manner
whatsoever(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) byor on behalf of the
FundingParty or provide any guarantee,security or the like from
oron behalf of the UltimateBeneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit proceduresas considered reasonable and
appropriate - in the circumstances,nothing has come to our
noticethat has caused us to believe thatthe representations under
subclause(iv) (a) and (iv) (b) contain anymaterial mis-statement.

The dividend has proposed or paid during the year by the
Company is in compliance with Section 123 of the Act.

According to section 143(3)(b), it has been observed that the
company diligently maintains daily backups of its data on its
server infrastructure. This practice ensures data integrity and
resilience against potential loss or corruption, aligning with
regulatory requirements and best practices in'data managenient;.,
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vii.

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the
Company has used accounting softwares for maintaining its books
of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 which has a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the softwares. Further, during the course of our audit
we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature
being tampered with.,

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is
applicable from April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of
audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention
is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

Chartered Ac_(;ountan_ts
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE TO
THE MEMBERS OF RAKSHA HEALTH INSURANCE TPA PRIVATE LIMITED ON
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2024; WE REPORT
THAT:

(i) In respect of the Company's property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets
and intangible
(a) (A)The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and
Equipmentand relevant details of right-of-use assets.

(B)The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets on the basis of available information.

(b) All Property, Plant and Equipment have not been physically verified by the
management during the year. There is a regular programme of verification
under which the company selectively conducts the physical verification of
Property, Plant and Equipment to cover all its assets over a period of 3 years,
which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the company
and the nature of its assets. Certain Property, Plant and Equipment have been
physically verified by the management during the year in accordance with such
programme and as informed, discrepancies which were material in nature and
have been accordingly dealt in the books of accounts.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the registered sale deeds / transfer deeds / conveyance
deeds / possession letters / allotment letters and other relevant records
evidencing title/possession provided to us, we report that, the title deeds of all
the immovable properties comprising of land and buildings recorded as
Property, Plant and Equipment, which are freehold, are held in the name of the
Company as at the balance sheet date.

| Descriptio | Gross Title whether title deed | Property reason for mnot

n of items | carryin | deeds holder is a promoter, | held since | held in the

of proerty | g value | held in | director or | which date | name of
the relative/employee of company

name of | promotor/director

NA NA | NA NA NA NA




(d) According to information and explanations given to us and books of accounts
and records examined by us, During the year the Company has not revalued its
Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) and intangible
assets.

(e) According to information & explanations and representation given to us by
the management, no. proceedings have been initiated or are pending against
the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(ii) (a) The company is a service company, the company does not have any
inventory; hence the provisions of clause 3(ii) of the said Order are not
applicable.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits during
the year. Accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(ii)(b) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iii) The company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies,
firms or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of
the Companies Act.

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not given any loans and guarantees to its Directors or other Body Corporate,
also the company has made investments in compliance with the provisions of
section 186 of the Act.

v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the
directives issued by Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to
76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2015 are not applicable to the company for the
year under audit.

(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central
Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act.2013 for the business activities
carried out by the Company. Hence, reporting under clause (vi) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(vii) In Respect of Statutory Dues:

(a)  According to the information and explanations given to us and according to
the booksand records produced and examined by us, the Company is
generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including
Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income tax, Service tax, cess-and
other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities ap‘Plicable to, i't",_ =
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(b)

(viii)

(ix)

)

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed
amounts payable in respect of provident fund, income tax, service tax and
other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 315t March 2024 for a
period of more than six months from the date they become payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) which have been deposited with
the appropriate authority on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
transactions which are not accounted in the books of account which have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in Tax Assessment of the
Company. Also, there are no previously unrecorded income which has been
now recorded in the books of account. Hence, the provision stated in paragraph
3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company does not have any loans or borrowings and repayment to
lenders during the year. Accordingly, the provision stated in paragraph 3(ix) (a)
to (c) and sub clause (e) and (f)) of the Orderis not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our audit procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared wilful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government
authority.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information explanation provided to us,
no money was raised by way of term loans. Accordingly, the provision stated in
paragraph 3(ix) (c) of the Order is not applicableto the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the
procedures performed by us, and on an overall examination of the financial
statements of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis
have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) According to the information explanation given to us and on an overall
examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, we report
that the Company has not taken any funds from an any entity or person on
account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries. The Company doesnot
have any associate or joint venture.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures
performed by us, we report that the Company has not raised loans during the
year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries and the Company does
not have any associate or joint venture. Hence, reporting under the clause
3(ix)(f) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further

public offer (including debt instruments) during.the year and hence reporting

under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable. / %
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(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(b) During the year; the Company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or convertiable debenture (fully or partly or
optionally) and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the order is not
applicable.

(a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the
company, carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing
practices in india and according to the information and explanations given to
us, we have not come across any instance of any material fraud by the company
nor on the company.

(b) We have not come across of any instance of material fraud by the Company
or on the Company during the course of audit of the standalone financial
statement for the year ended March 31, 2024, accordingly the provisions
stated in paragraph (xi) (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower
complaints received by the Company during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information given to us, the company is not
a Nidhi company. Hence clause 3(xii) is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, transactions with
the related parties are in compliance with the sections 177 and 188 of the act
where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in
Annexure-1 of Notes to Account in the financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

(a) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till
date, for the period under audit,

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not
entered into non cash transactions with directors or the persons connected with
him. Accordingly, clause 3(xv) of the order is not applicable on the company.

(a) To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Company is not required
to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(b) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations provided
to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, the Company has not conducted
any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities during the year as per
the Reserve bank of India Act 1934,

(c) In our opinion, and according to the information andsexplanations pravidet.
to us, the Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defided in the

-




(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

(xxi)

Charte
F.R.N:

(d) As represented by the management, the group does not have more than one
core investment company (CIC) as part of the group as per the definition of
group contained in Core Investment Companies (Reserved Bank) Directions,
2016.

In our openion, company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in
the immediately preceding financial year, Accordingly clause 3(xvii) of the order
is not applicable on the company.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.
Therefore, provisions of clause (xviii) of Paragraph 3 of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting and the various conditions
specified under paragraph “Material uncertainty related to Going Concern”
above, which indicates and causes us to believe that there is no material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is capable
of meeting all its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they
fall due within a period of one year from the balance. sheet date.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
there is no unspent amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013 pursuant to any project. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and
3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of
audit of standalone financial statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of
the said clause has been included in the report.

d Accountants
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Annexure -B to the Auditors Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under clause (i) of sub- section 3 of section
143 of the Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting of RAKSHA
HEALTH INSURANCE TPA PRIVATE LIMITED (“the company”), as on March 31, 2024,
in conjunction with our audit of the Financial Statements of the company for the year ended
on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India('ICAT').These responsibilities include the design,
implementation, and maintenance of adequate internal financial that were operating
effectively ‘for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to the company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of fraud and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our auditWe conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act’ 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued
by Institute of Chartered of India. Those standards and the Guidance Note required that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over Financial Reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the Internal Financial Controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatements of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system

over financial reporting.
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A company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A Company’s internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

(1) pertains to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable details, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding the prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any revaluations of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in condition, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as on 31st March 2024, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the company considering the essential
components of internal controls stated in Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Chartered Accountants
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